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Directors’ Report
Dear Members,

Your directors are delighted to present to you the Thirty-Second Annual Report of InCred Prime
Finance Limited (Formerly ‘InCred Financial Services Limited’) (“the Company”) together with the
Audited Statement of Accounts for the financial year(“FY”) ended on March 31, 2024.

COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

The Company has undergone a Composite Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement amongst
InCred Holdings Limited (erstwhile known as ‘KKR Capital Markets India Limited') (“IHL"), Bee Finance
Limited, InCred Financial Services Limited (erstwhile known as 'KKR India Financial Services Limited')
("IFSL”), InCred Prime Finance Limited (erstwhile known as 'InCred Financial Services Limited')
(“IPFL/erstwhile IFSL”) and their respective shareholders, hereinafter referred to as “Scheme”. The
Scheme was approved by the National Company Law Tribunal vide its order dated May 6, 2022,
certified true copy of which was received by the Company on June 6, 2022.

Accordingly, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on July 26, 2022, have made the Scheme
effective. Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the identified business, branches, assets specific &
general liabilities, debts, accumulated tax loss and unabsorbed tax depreciation, obligations, permits,
contracts, employees, agreements, policies, arrangements, approvals, sanctions and proceedings etc.
of the InCred Demerged Undertaking as defined in the Scheme carried on by erstwhile IFSL have
vested in IFSL.

Further as per the Scheme, the remaining NBFC business as provided in the Scheme shall continue to
be carried out by IPFL. Pursuant to the Scheme, the name of the Company has changed to InCred
Prime Finance Limited.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The summary of the Company’s financial performance for F.Y 2023-24 as compared to the previous
F.Y 2022-23 is given below:

(®. In Lakhs)
2023-24 2022-23

PARTICULARS

Income from Operations 21.58 77.46
Other Income 2.71 134.04
Total Income 24.29 211.50
Expenses 372.23 194.36
Depreciation & Amortization 0.42 0.50
Total Expenses 372.65 194.86
Profit before exceptional items and tax (348.36) 16.64
Exceptional Items - -
Profit after exceptional items and before (348.36) 16.64
tax

Tax Expense (45.64) 15.13
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Profit After Tax (302.72) 1.51

Transfer to Special Reserve under 0 0.30
Section 45-IC of The RBI Act, 1934

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND OPERATIONS OF THE COMPANY

Your Company is registered with Reserve Bank of India (RBI), as a Non - Deposit Taking Non-Banking
Finance Company under Section 45-1A of the RBI Act, 1934 and continues to comply with the applicable
guidelines, circular, notification and directions issued by Reserve Bank of India (RBI) as applicable to
a Systemically Important Non - Deposit Taking Non- Banking Finance Company (‘NBFC-ND-SI’).
Overview of the FY 2023-24:

e The Company’s revenue was % 21.58 Lakhs and profit after tax was % (302.72) Lakhs during the
year;
o Assets under management reduced to % 0.24 Lakhs as against ¥ 145.03 Lakhs in the previous year

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

No amount has being transferred to Special Reserve created under Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934.

DIVIDEND
For the year ended on March 31, 2024, your Company has not considered payment of dividend.

INFORMATION ON THE STATE OF AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY/MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS REPORT

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis Report, for the year under review is presented as
Annexure A which forms part of this report.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY DURING THE YEAR

There are no material changes or commitments which affect the financial position of the Company which
have occurred between end of the financial year to which the financial statements relate, and the
date of this Report.

RBI COMPLIANCE

The Company continues to comply with the RBI regulations as applicable to it.

The Company has also complied with the applicable provisions of the Act, the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934 and other applicable rules/regulations/guidelines, issued from time to time.
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CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO (“CRAR?”)

The company maintains a healthy CRAR of 76.91% which is much higher than the prescribed minimum
CRAR of 15% as per prudential norms. Following are the details of Tier | & Il Capital of the Company
as on March 31, 2024:

CRAR- Tier | Capital 649.13 Lakhs

CRAR- Tier Il Capital : 10.73 Lakhs

SHARE CAPITAL

As on March 31, 2024, the Authorised Share Capital of the Company stood at INR 21,06,00,00,000
comprising of 20,110,000,000 Equity Shares of INR 1/- each and 950,000,000 Preference Shares of
INR 1/- each.

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL

As on March 31, 2024, the issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Company stood at INR
388,025,963 comprising of 388,025,963 fully paid-up equity shares of face value of INR 1/- each.
Further, all the shares issued are held in dematerialized form.

REDUCTION OF SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

Subsequent to the Shareholders approval dated April 11, 2024 the Company on May 11, 2024 filed an
application/petition before National Company Law Tribunal pursuant to the provisions of Section 66 of
Companies Act 2013 for reduction of its issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital from INR
38,80,25,963/- (Rupees Thirty Eight Crore Eighty Lakh Twenty Five Thousand Nine Hundred and Sixty
Three only) comprising of 38,80,25,963 fully paid up equity shares of Re 1/- (Rupee One only) each
to INR 4,11,24,668 (Rupees Four Crore Eleven Lakh Twenty Four Thousand Six Hundred and
Sixty Eight Only) comprising of 4,11,24,668 fully paid up equity shares of INR 1/- (Rupee One only)
each and that such reduction be effected by cancelling and extinguishing 34,69,01,295 issued,
subscribed and fully paid-up equity shares of INR 1/- (Rupee One only) each held by certain
identified equity shareholders of the Company representing 89.40% of the total issued, subscribed
and paid-up share capital of the Company. Further, as on the date of this report the approval from the
Hon’ble Tribunal for Reduction of Share Capital of the Company is awaited.

FUND RAISING

During the period under review, the Company has not raised funds through issue of debt securities or
through any other kind of borrowings.

CREDIT RATING

During the period under review, there is no credit rating assigned to the Company.
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CHANGES IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

The Company continued to carry on its business as Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Finance Company
within the framework given by RBI for NBFCs.

DISCLOSURE RELATING TO HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATE
COMPANIES AND PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF EACH SUBSIDIARY /
ASSOCIATE AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES

As on March 31, 2024, InCred Holdings Limited continues to be the Holding Company holding 59.37%
Equity Shares Capital of the Company.

Further, there is no subsidiary/joint venture/ associate companies.

DIRECTORS

The composition of the Board is in accordance with the provisions of Section 149 of the Act of the
Companies Act, 2013 with an appropriate combination of Non-Executive Directors and Independent

Directors.

The Board comprises of the following Directors as on March 31, 2024:

Sr. No. | Name of Director DIN Designation

1. Mr. Bhupinder Singh 07342318 Non-Executive Director
2. Mr. Vivek Bansal 07835456 Non-Executive Director
3. Ms. Rupa Vora 01831916 Independent Director

4 Mr. Sekar Karnam 07400094 Independent Director

Further, Mr. Karnam Sekar was re-appointed by the Shareholders at its 315t Annual General Meeting
held on September 20, 2023 as an Independent Director for a second term of 5 consecutive years
commencing from March 31, 2023 to March 30, 2028.

Following changes with respect to the Board took place after year ending March 31, 2024.

Further, Mr. Bhupinder Singh and Mr. Vivek Bansal have resigned as Non — Executive Directors of the
Company w.e.f. April 09, 2024 and to fill the casual vacancy caused due to the resignation, Mr. Prithviraj
Chandrasekhar & Mr. Kamlesh Dangi were appointed in their place as the Additional (Non-Executive)
Director of the Company with effect from April 09, 2024.

The Board places on record its sincere appreciation for the valuable contribution and guidance provided
by Mr. Bhupinder Singh and Mr. Vivek Bansal during their association with the Company.

Ms. Rupa Vora and Mr. Karnam Sekar continued to act as an Independent Directors of the Company.

Further the terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors are available on the website
of the Company viz. https://www.incredprime.com. The Board is of the opinion that the Independent
Directors of the Company possess requisite qualifications, experience and expertise and hold highest
standards of integrity.
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Based on the declarations and confirmations received in terms of the provisions of the Act and the RBI
Directions, none of the Directors on the Board of the Company are disqualified from being appointed or
to continue as Directors.

There were no pecuniary relationship or transactions with the non-executive directors, vis- a-vis the
Company during the financial year 2023-2024 therefore there are no disclosures to be provided herein.

DIRECTOR LIABLE TO RETIRE BY ROTATION:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company, as
on the date of this report other than Ms. Rupa Vora and Mr. Karnam Sekar acting as an Independent
Directors of the Company. Mr. Prithviraj Chandrasekhar & Mr. Kamlesh Dangi are appointed as an
Additional Non-Executive Directors who are proposed to be regularised as the Non-Executive Director
in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Accordingly, there are No Director on the Board who shall be
retiring in the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company.

DECLARATION BY DIRECTORS

Each of the Director of the Company have confirmed that they satisfy the “fit and proper” criteria as
prescribed under Chapter XI of RBI Master Direction No. DNBR. PD. 008/ 03.10.119/2016-17 dated 1st
September 2016 (as amended from time to time) and that they are not disqualified from being
appointed/ continuing as Directors in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

The Board of Directors has confirmed that all existing Directors are fit and proper to continue to hold
the appointment as Directors on the Board, as reviewed and recommended by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee on fit and proper criteria under RBI Master Directions.

DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

All Independent Directors have submitted the declaration of independence, pursuant to the provisions
of Section 149(7) of the Act, stating that they meet the criteria of independence as provided in Section
149(6) of the Act and they are not aware of any circumstance or situation, which exist or may be
reasonably anticipated, that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties with an objective
independent judgment and without any external influence.

FIT AND PROPER CRITERIA & CODE OF CONDUCT

All the Directors meet the fit and proper criteria stipulated by the RBI. All the Directors and Senior
Management of the Company have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct of the Company.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

As per Section 203 of the Act read with the rules made thereunder, the following employees were the
whole-time key managerial personnel of the Company as on March 31, 2024:

1. Mr. Sunil Harlalka, Manager
2. Mr. Bhavyesh Jain, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
3. Mr. Jay Lalwani, Chief Financial Officer
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During the year under review, The Board at its meeting held on May 16, 2023, accepted the resignation
of Mr. Shailesh Kumar as the Chief Financial Officer with effect from May 31, 2023, and appointed Mr.
Jay Lalwani as the Chief Financial Officer with effect from June 01, 2023.

Further, Ms. Nikita Vora ceased to be the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company
with effect from April 28, 2023 and Mr. Bhavyesh Jain was appointed as the Company Secretary and
Compliance Officer of the Company with effect from May 16, 2023.

Further, during the year under review, the shareholders at its 315t Annual General Meeting held on
September 20, 2023, approved the appointment of Mr. Sunil Harlalka as the Manager of the Company
for a period of 3 years from the date of his appointment i.e December 19, 2022 to December 18, 2025.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year under review the Board met four times viz. on May 16, 2023, September 08, 2023,
December 29, 2023 and February 22, 2024. The intervening gap between the meetings was within the
period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

COMMITTEES CONSTITUTED BY THE BOARD

The Company has several committees which have been established as a part of the best corporate
governance practices and are in compliance with the requirements of the relevant statutory and
regulatory provisions of applicable laws and statutes.

As on March 31, 2024, the Company had various Committees constituted pursuant to statutory /
regulatory requirements namely Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, Asset Liability Management Committee, Risk Management
Committee, Finance Committee and IT Strategy Committee.

The details of formation, constitution, terms of reference, meetings held and attendance of the Members
have been disclosed in the Financial Statements of the Company.

COMPANY’S POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION FOR DIRECTORS,
KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND OTHER EMPLOYEES

Section 178 of the Act requires the Nomination and Remuneration Committee ("NRC") to formulate a
policy relating to the remuneration of the Directors, Senior Management/KMPs and other employees of
the Company and recommend the same for approval of the Board.

Further, Section 134 of the Act stipulates that the Board’s Report is required to include a statement on
Company’s Policy on Directors’ appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of director and remuneration for KMPs and other
employees.

The Board of Directors have, based on the recommendation of the NRC, approved the policy on
Directors’ appointment and remuneration for Directors, KMP and other employees, which is available
on the website of the Company at https://www.incredprime.com.
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PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

The Board acknowledges its intention to establish and follow “best practices” in Board governance to
fulfil its fiduciary obligation to the Company. The Board is committed to assessing its own performance
as a Board to identify its strengths and areas in which it may improve its functioning.

The Company has laid down an Evaluation Policy for Board Evaluation, setting the criteria based on
which the Board has carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the
individual directors as well as the evaluation of its various Committees. The evaluation was conducted
based on a structured questionnaire which comprises performance criteria such as performance of
duties and obligations, independence of judgement, level of engagement and participation, their
contribution in enhancing the Board’s overall effectiveness, etc. The Board has expressed their
satisfaction with the evaluation process.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors, based on the representations received from the operational management, confirm in
pursuance to provisions of Section 134(5) of the Act, that:

in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and of the profit of the Company for that period;

the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively; and

the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws including Secretarial Standards and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s Shinde Nayak & Associates, Chartered Accountants (FRN 119906W), were appointed as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company by the members of the Company in the 30" AGM of the Company
to hold the office of the Statutory Auditors for a period of three consecutive years from the conclusion
of the 30" AGM till the conclusion of 33" AGM.

AUDITORS’ REPORT
The Auditors’ Report to the Members during the year under review is unmodified/clean. The Notes to

the accounts referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any
further clarifications under Section 134(3)(f) of the Act.
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REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS

There were no frauds reported by the Auditors of the Company under Section 143(12) of the Act to the
Audit Committee (“AC”).

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

The Company is in the financial services industry. In view of the nature of activities which are being
carried on by the Company, the maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act is not applicable on the Company and hence such
accounts and records are not maintained.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has an internal control system, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its
operations. The Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements as designed and
implemented by the Company are adequate. During the year under review, no material or serious
observation has been received from the Statutory Auditors of the Company for inefficiency or
inadequacy of such controls. M/s. Shinde Nayak & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants, have
issued unqualified report on Internal Financial Controls.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, and according to the information and explanations obtained
by us and based on the report(s) of Statutory Auditors of the Company for the financial year under
review, the Directors are of the view that the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements of the Company were adequate and operating efficiently.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The Board of Directors affirms that the remuneration paid to the employees of the Company is as per
the Policy on Directors’ appointment and remuneration for Directors, KMPs and other employees and
is in accordance with the requirements of the Act and none of the employees are related to any Directors
of the Company.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the Composite Scheme, as part of the demerger, the permanent and contract employees,
staff, and workmen of the Company engaged in the Retail NBFC Business (as defined in the
Transaction Scheme) became employees of the IFSL. Accordingly, pursuant to the terms of the
Scheme, IHL has adopted the ESOP Plan & Scheme under which the employees of the Company which
have been transferred to IFSL have received employee stock options of IHL.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE

The Company has in place a policy for prevention, prohibition, and redressal of sexual harassment at
workplace.
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Further, the Company has constituted Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder
that looks into the complaints of aggrieved women employees, if any, and is instrumental in:

e  Promoting gender equality and justice and the universally recognized human right to work with
dignity
e  Prevention of sexual harassment of women at the workplace.

During the year under review, the Company has not received any complaints in this regard.
VIGIL MECHANISM

Pursuant to the provisions of section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has
established vigil mechanism for directors, employees, and other external stakeholders to report genuine
concerns. Vigil Mechanism forms part of Whistle Blower Policy, which has been approved by the Board
of Directors and is displayed on the web site of the Company at https://www.incredprime.com.

The Vigil Mechanism Framework empowers all levels of employees including top management to raise
voice against actual/ suspected violations. The framework ensures protection to the whistle-blower to
avoid any sort of unfair or prejudicial employment practices. The Chairperson of the Audit Committee
has direct access to all complaints raised through the framework. At the Audit Committee, brief update
is presented to the Members for their review. The Committee takes necessary actions to maintain
confidentiality within the organization on matters brought to its attention. There were no whistle blower
complaints received during the year.

The mechanism framed by the Company is in compliance with the requirements of the Act.
DEPOSITS

Your Company being an NBFC, disclosure requirements under Chapter V of the Act read with Rule
8(5)(v) and 8(5)(vi) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to your Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

In accordance with the requirements of the provisions of Section 135 of the Act, the Company does not
fall under criteria specified under the Act, therefore the Company is not required to spend any amount
towards CSR activities during the financial year ended 315t March, 2024.

ANNUAL RETURN AS PRESCRIBED UNDER THE ACT AND RULES MADE THEREUNDER

The Annual Return in Form MGT-7 as required under Section 92(3) of the Act shall be hosted on the
website of the Company viz https://www.incredprime.com.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Details of loans given, investments made, guarantees given and securities provided, if any, are covered
under the provisions of Section 186 of the Act and forms part of the Notes to the Financial Statements.
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PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Board of Directors has approved the policy on transactions with related parties (“RPT Policy”),
pursuant to the recommendation of the Audit Committee. In line with the requirements of the Act, RBI
Regulations, the Company has formulated the RPT Policy which is also available on the website of the
Company at https://www.incredprime.com. The Policy on Related party Transactions intends to ensure
that proper reporting, approval and disclosure processes are in place for all transactions between the
Company and the related parties.

During the year under review, the contracts and arrangements with the related party have been entered
by the Company in its ordinary course of business and at arm’s length and there were no materially
significant related party transactions. Given that the Company does not have anything to report pursuant
to Section 134(3)(h) of the Act read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in Form
No. AOC- 2, the same is not provided.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF
THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE
REPORT

There are no material changes or commitments which affect the financial position of the Company which
have occurred between end of the financial year to which the financial statements relate, and the date
of this Report other than as explained above in the para — Composite Scheme of Arrangement.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS, COURTS

AND TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS
IN FUTURE

There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts which would impact the
going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

Considering that the Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company, the particulars regarding
conservation of energy and technology absorption as required to be disclosed pursuant to Section
134(3) (m) of the 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 not relevant to its
activities.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

During the year under consideration, there was no Foreign Exchange Earnings and Expenditures.
RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Company has constituted a Risk Management Committee (“RMC”) in terms of the requirements of

Master Circular — “Non-Banking Financial Companies — Corporate Governance (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2015".
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The Company have a risk management framework and Board members are informed about risk
assessment and minimization procedures and periodical review to ensure management controls risk by
means of a properly designed framework.

The Company has in place a Risk Management Policy covering identification, assessment,
measurement, mitigation and monitoring of all the key risks faced by the Company. This policy has
been approved by the Board and is subjected to its review at an annual frequency at the minimum. The
Risk Management Committee assists the Board in providing oversight on the implementation of risk
management framework laid down in the policy.

The Company, as it advances towards its business objectives and goals, is often subjected to various
risks. Details of the same are provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE MANAGEMENT ACT COMPLIANCE

The Board hereby confirms that the Company has complied with all the provisions and requirements
under Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 including applicable Master Directions issued by the
Reserve Bank of India.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

In terms of provisions of Section 118 of the Act, your Company is in compliance with Secretarial
Standards on Meetings of the Board of Directors and Secretarial Standards on General Meeting issued
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

OTHER DISCLOSURES

During the year under review, the Company has not obtained any registration/ license / authorisation,
by whatever name called from any other financial sector regulators.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors express their sincere gratitude to RBI, Securities and Exchange Board of India, National
Stock Exchange of India Limited, BSE Limited, Ministry of Finance, Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Registrar of Companies, other government and regulatory authorities, lenders, financial institutions and
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For InCred Prime Finance Limited
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Annexure A
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

InCred Prime Finance Limited (‘InCred Prime’ or ‘the Company’) (erstwhile known as 'InCred
Financial Services Limited i.e. IFSL') is a non-deposit taking Non-banking Financial Company
(NBFC) registered with the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI') engaged in the business of lending.

Macroeconomic Overview:

FY24 was a challenging year for the international economy. The conflict between Russia and
Ukraine continued through a second consecutive year. In the second half of the year, violence in
Israel and Gaza added to socio-political instability. Although the runaway inflation of the post-
pandemic era began to stabilize, it continued to be at elevated levels. Global supply chains
disrupted by the pandemic have also not yet recovered completely.

Despite the global turmoil, the Indian economy continued to show resilience and strength.
Carrying forward its momentum from FY23, India was one of the fastest-growing large economies
of FY24 and is a key driver of growth globally. India’s GDP growth for the financial year gone by
is expected to be above 7.5%; and going forward, around 7% GDP growth is estimated for FY25.
This reflects not only the resilience of the Indian economy to geopolitical turbulence, but also the
country’s commitment to growth through structural reforms and favorable economic initiatives,
to which its large working-age population is an added benefit.

The early months of calendar year 2024 have shown signs of India’s growth potential and augur
well for FY25. The headline CPI inflation fell from 5.1% in February 2024 to 4.9% in March, while
the unemployment rate in the same period fell from 8% to 7.6%, with both the urban and rural
economies contributing to the improvement. GST collections for March stood at INR 1.78 lakh
crore, an 11.5% Y-o-Y growth that was driven largely by growth of over 17% in domestic GST
collections. All in all a strong year for the Indian economy and the baseline seems to be in place
for a strong FY25 to follow.

Industry Overview:

The Financial Services industry is the backbone of the Indian economy. It consists primarily of
commercial banks, insurance companies, NBFCs, cooperatives, pension funds, mutual funds and
other smaller financial institutions. As of March 31, 2024, India had over 9,300 registered NBFCs.

The pivotal role NBFCs have played in financial intermediation and promoting inclusive growth
cannot be overstated. NBFCs play a pivotal role in providing them access to credit and financial
services. While the last ten years have seen disruptive events like demonetization, the Covid 19
pandemic, and the failures of a few large NBFCs, the industry has weathered these storms,
emerging stronger each time. In particular, NBFCs that are well-managed, with a strong focus on
risk management and sustainable growth, have separated themselves from their peers to emerge
as sector leaders.

With an estimated 160 million middle and high-income households to be added by 2030, Indian
demographics will drive demand for accessible credit, augmenting growth across the lending
landscape. With all these factors, coupled with their strong linkages to the banking industry,
capital markets and other traditional financial sector entities, NBFCs will play a pivotal role in
bringing financial services to the underserved Indian market.



The Company:

The Company had undergone a Composite Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement which was
approved by the National Company Law Tribunal vide its order dated May 6, 2022, hereinafter
referred to as “Scheme”. Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the identified business, branches,
specific assets & general liabilities, debts, accumulated tax loss and unabsorbed tax depreciation,
obligations, permits, contracts, employees, agreements, policies, arrangements, approvals,
sanctions and proceedings etc. of the InCred Demerged Undertaking, as defined in the Scheme,
which were earlier carried on by InCred Prime were vested in IFSL, and the remaining NBFC
business as provided in the Scheme continues to be carried out by InCred Prime. Pursuant to the
Scheme, the name of the Company was changed to InCred Prime Finance Limited. The company
has been on a book run-down mode and as on March 31, 2024, unsecured loan book worth only
Rs. 0.002 crore is outstanding under the company.

Performance highlights of the Company:

Loans and Advances - Rs. 0.002 Crs
Net Interest Income - Rs. 0.18 Crs
Profit before Tax - Rs. (3.49) Crs
Profit after Tax - Rs. (2.66) Crs

AN

InCred Prime has 5 employees at the end of the year.

Opportunities & Threats:

Risk Management of the balance sheet is essential to manage risks associated with credit quality,
market volatility and economic uncertainty.

Risks & Concerns:

In view of the growing volatility in the operating environment impacting global businesses on an
unprecedented scale, we are adopting a more proactive risk management and mitigation
framework which is based on assessment of risks through proper analysis and understanding of
the underlying risks before undertaking any transactions and changing or implementing
processes and systems. The key risks are the following:

¢ Liquidity Risk - The Company has in place Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO),
consisting of Directors and senior officials. They review the policies, systems, controls, and
positions of the financing business and oversee the implementation and ensure adherence
to the risk tolerance/limits and liquidity buffer.

e (Credit Risk - The Company has a stringent Credit Appraisal System and monitoring
processes for identification, assessment, and mitigation of Credit Risk.

o Regulatory Risk - We fully comply with all the periodic guidelines issued by the RBI and
other regulators and adhere strictly to all the regulatory requirements.

e ITrisk- We have put in processes, systems and tools for ensuring vigilant monitoring, audit
logging and suspicious activity reporting.



Internal control systems and their adequacy:

Internal Audit (‘IA") function lead by Head, Internal Audit reports functionally to Audit
Committee. The function is governed by Internal Audit Policy and Charter which clearly defines
roles and responsibility and independence of Internal Auditors, Management responsibility. Risk
based IA plan is prepared on an annual basis and the same is discussed and approved by Audit
Committee. IA function is adequately skilled to deliver on IA plan. Internal Audit findings / reports
are discussed with process owners and agreed action plan is tracked for implementation.
Significant observations and action plan status is updated to Audit Committee.

Outlook:

The management is contemplating business strategies for future roadmap in accordance with the
discussions with stakeholders.

For InCred Prime Finance Limited

=4 el

Kamlesh Dangi Prithviraj Chandrasekhar
Director Director
DIN: 05152439 DIN: 07835456

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 11, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To The Members of INCRED PRIME FINANCE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of INCRED PRIME FINANCE LIMITED
(‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as ‘financial Statements’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (‘Ind AS’) and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and its losses and total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(the ‘SAs’) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are
further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provision of this Act and the
Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial
statements.

Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other

formation and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with

partment, Kesar Baug Compound, Opp. Shinde Wadi, Off Dr. Ambedkar Road, Dadar (E), Mumbai - 400 014,
Tel No. : 2410 5352, 2413 4364 e Fax No. : 91-22-2415 5297
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the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our auditor otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the financial statements

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section
134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ( “the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including
other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the act, read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and
detecting the frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of internal financial control, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of Financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

@,
CHARTERED
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143@3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication. ‘

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A”, a
statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including Other comprehensive income,
Statement of changes in equity & the statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of account;

d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid financials comply with the Ind AS referred to in section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024, and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2024, from being appointed as a director in terms of sub section (2) of section 164 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“ Annexure B”.

g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2024 has been
paid / provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section
197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

g With respect to the other matters to be included in the Independent Auditor’s report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Aud_it and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion
Zilind to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

w

A
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ii.

iv.

VI

The company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivatives contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not
proposed final dividend for the year.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of
our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered
with. Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the company as per the
statutory requirements for record retention.
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3. During the course of our audit we have generally not come across any violations of guidelines
issued by Reserve Bank of India except that the Company had Invested its surplus funds of Rs. 8.13
crores in various scheme of mutual fund, against a single party exposure limit of Rs. 2.62 crores.
Subsequently the company has taken corrective action by redeeming those mutual funds.

For Shinde Nayak & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 119906W
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CA. L. V. Nayak
Partner
Membership No. 104221

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 11, 2024
UDIN: : 24104221BKAMMOQ7466
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory

Requirements’ section of our report of even date on the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended March 31, 2024, we report that:

(1)

(1f)

(@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) Based on our audit procedures performed and according to information and
explanations given by management, we report that there is no intangible asset as on balance
sheet date. Hence reporting under clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the order is not applicable to the
company.

(b) Property, Plant & Equipment were physically verified by management at reasonable
intervals and according to the explanations and information provided to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) Based on our audit procedures performed and according to information and explanations
given by the management, we report that the there are no immovable properties as on the
balance sheet date. Hence reporting under clause 3(i)(c) of the order is not applicable to the
company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets
during the year ended March 31, 2024.

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1998 and rules
made thereunder.

(a) The Company’s business does not require maintenance of inventories and, accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(a) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(b) Based on the information and explanation provided to us, during any point of time of the
year, the company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees,
in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. As
such, the quarterly returns or statements were not required to be filed by the Company with
such banks or financial institutions.
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(i)

(a) The principal business of the company is to give loans and is a registered non-banking
financial company ("NBFC’) and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the company.

(b) During the year the investments and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and
advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any other
parties are not prejudicial to the company’s interest. The company has not provided any
guarantees or given any securities during the year.

(¢) Inrespect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the company as part of its
business for providing loans to individuals and corporates, the schedule of repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated by the company and the repayments
/ receipts of principal and interest are regular

(d) The principal business of the company is to give loans and is a registered NBFC and
accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(e) of the order is not applicable to the

company.

(e) The company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnership or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report
on clause 3(iii)(f) of the order is not applicable to the company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(iv) of the order is not applicable to the company.

The company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts
which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act
and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, he requirement to report
on clause 3(V) of the order is not applicable to the company.

In our opinion, clause 3(vi) of the order for maintenance of the cost records under section 148(1)
of the Companies Act 2013 is not applicable to the Company.

(a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees state insurance, income-
tax, goods and services tax, duty of custom, duty of excise value added tax, cess and other
statutory dues applicable to the company have generally been regularly deposited with the
appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, no
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(b) There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees state insurance,
income tax, sales-tax , service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess, goods and
services tax and other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

(viii)  The company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the
books of accounts, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the
year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the order is not applicable to
the company.

(ix) (a) The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings or in the payment
of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, there were no term loans availed by
the company during the year and accordingly reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the order is not
applicable.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on
short term basis have been used for long term purposes by the company.

() On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries or joint ventures or associate companies. Hence, the requirement to report on clause
(ix) (f) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(x)  (a) Based on our audit procedures and according to information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
including debt instruments during the year and hence reporting under clause (x)(a) of the Order
is not applicable.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) during the year and hence reporting under
clause 3 (x) (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

(xi)  (a) Based on the audit procedures performed and information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported

3 To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the
panies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit
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(xiv)

(xvi)
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and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and up to the date of
this report

(c) Based on audit procedures and as per explanations provided to us, there are no instances of
whistle blower complaints during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) of the order is
not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company is
in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, for all transactions with
the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) In our opinion, the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the
size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date, for the period
under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year
the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with any of its directors or persons
connected to its directors and hence provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable.

(a) The Company has registered as required, under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank Of India
Act, 1934 and the registration has been obtained.

(b) The company has not conducted any Non- Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
without obtaining a valid Certificate of Registration (COR) from the Reserve Bank of India as
per the Reserve Bank Of India Act, 1934

(c) The company is not a core investment company as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirements to report on clause 3(xvi)(c) of the order
is not applicable to the company.

(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the group, hence, the requirement to
report on clause 3(xvi)(d) of the order is not applicable to the company.

In our opinion and as per the explanations provided to us, the company has not incurred cash
losses in the current and immediately preceding financial year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets

ination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
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indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall
due.

(xix)  (a) Inrespect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to
be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act, in accordance with
the second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed
in note 38 to the financial statements.

(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects that are required to be
transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of
the Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 38 to the standalone financial statements.

For Shinde Nayak & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 119906W

(CA. L. V. Nayak)
Partner
Membership No. 104221

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 11, 2024

UDIN: : 24104221 BKAMMOQ7466



Shinde Nayak & Associates
Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
InCred Prime Finance Limited

Annexure ‘B’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of INCRED PRIME
FINANCE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audzt mvolves performlng procedures to obtam audlt ev1dence about the adequacy of the
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and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk.

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that,

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For Shinde Nayak & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 119906W

W

(CA. L. WNayak) {‘
Partner \
Membership No. 104221

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 11, 2024

UDIN: 24104221BKAMMOQ7466



InCred Prime Finance Limited
(formerly known as InCred Financial Services Limited)

Standalone Financial Statements
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

(Rs. in lakhs)
{ As at As at
Particulars Note No J
3 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
(1) Financial assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 2 165.02 8.27
(b) Loans 3 0.24 145.03
{c) Investments 4 813.00 -
(d) Otherfinancial assets 5 22.39 148.55
1,000.65 301.85
{2) Non-financial assets
{a) Current tax assets (Net of provision for tax) 75.41 1,183.68
{b) Deferred tax assets (Net of deferred tax liabilities) 6 130.82 47.38
(c) Property, plant and equipment 7 0.12 0.54
(d) Other non-financial assets 8 11.51 896.30
217.86 2,127.90
Total assets 1,218.51 2,429.75
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
(1) Financial liabilities
{a) Borrowings {other than debt securities) 9 360.00 -
(b) Other financial liabilities 10 10.49 1,110.30
370.49 1,110.30
(2) Non-financial liabilities
(a) Provisions 11 54,41 127
(b) Other non-financial liabilities 12 2.21 223.48
56.62 224,75
EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital 13 3,880.26 3,880.26
{b) Other equity 14 (3,088.86) (2,785.56)
791.40 1,094.70
Total liabilities and equity 1,218.51 2,429.75
Significant accounting policies and other explanatary information 1
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements
For Shinde Nayak and Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants InCred Prime Finance Limited
ICAI Firm Registration Nu}.: 119%06W CIN: U74899MH1991PLC340312
h \;\ NS PMANY
2/ . .- NI \
f y Sl LA Prithviraj Chandrasekhar
= i . “: » Director
Membership No: 104221 |\ =\ "L ] e o o DIN: 07869747 DIN: 05152439
Place: Mumbai N\, '\'\\A_ )
Date: June 11, 2024 Ny \
Lalwani Bhavyesh Jain
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No: A30093

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 11, 2024




InCred Prime Finance Limited
(formerly known as InCred Financial Services Limited)

Standalone Financial Statements
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in lakhs)
i Year ended Year ended
Particulars Note N :
O] March31,2024 March 31,2023
Revenue From operations
(i) Interest income 15 18.55 74.85
(i) Fees and commission income 16 0.03 2,61
(iii) Net gain/{loss) on fair value changes 17 3.00 -
(1) Total revenue from operations 21.58 77.46
{ll) Other income 18 271 134.04
() Total income (1 + 11) 24.29 211.50
Expenses
(i} Finance costs 19 0.49 18.00
(i) Impairment on financial instruments 20 76.01 2351
(i} Employee benefits expenses 21 212.33 52.54
(iv) Depreciation, amortization and impairment 7 0.42 0.50
{v) Others expenses 22 83.40 100.31
{Iv) Total expenses 372.65 194.86
{v) Profit befare tax (11l - 1V} (348.36) 16.64
Tax Expense:
(i) Current Tax 37.60 6.64
(i) Deferred Tax (83.24) 8.49
(VI) Total Tax Expense 23 (45.64) 15.13
{vi1) Profit for the year (V- Vi) (302.72) 1.51
(vill) Other comprehensive income - -
(A) (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
{a) Remeasurement gain/(loss) of the defined benefit plans {0.78) -
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 0.20 -
Subtotal {A) (0.58) -
(B) (i) items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Subtotal (B) - -
Other comprehensive income / (loss) (A + B) {0.58) -
(IX} Total comprehensive income for the year (VIl + Vill) {303.30) 1.51
(X) Earnings per equity share (EPS) (FY : Re. 1 per share) 24
Basic (Rs.) {0.08) 0.00
Diluted {Rs.) {0.08) 0.00
Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Shinde Nayak and Associates
Chartered Accountants B
| Firm Registration No.: 119906W:'

L. V. Nayak
Partner L\ (S
Membership No: 104221 | W\

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 11, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
InCred Prime Finance Limited
CIN: U74899MH1991PLC340312

Prithviraj Chandrasekhar

Director Director

DIN: 07869747 DIN: 05152439
JayMalwani Bhavyesh Jain
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No: A30093

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 11, 2024




InCred Prime Finance Limited
(formerly known as InCred Financial Services Limited)

Standalone Financial Statements
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in lakhs)
AT Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax (348.36) 16.64
Adjustments ro reconcile net profit to net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 0.42 0.76
Interest income (18.55) (75.00)
Finance costs 0.49 18.00
Impairment on financial instruments 186.92 29.00
Retirement Benefit expenses 3.05 -
Operating profit before working capital changes (176.03) (10.60)
Working capital adjustments
(Increase) in Loans (42.13) 860.00
(Increase) in other financial assets 126.16 (89.00)
Decrease / (Increase) in other non financial assets 884.80 16.00
Increase in other financial liabilities (1,099.81) 386.00
Increase in other non financial liabilities (221.27) (221.00)
(Decrease) / Increase in provisions 49.31 -
Cash generated from operations (478.97) 941.38
Interest received on loans 18.55 75.00
Interest paid on borrowings and debt (0.49) (18.00)
Income taxes paid (net) 1,070.66 (6.00)
Net cash {used in) operating activities 609.75 992.39
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of investments (813.00) -
Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities (813.00) -
Cash flow from financing activities
Issue of equity shares (including securities premium) - 15.89
Proceeds from borrowings (other than debt securities) 360.00 -
Repayment of borrowings (other than debt securities) - (1,000.00)
Net cash generated from financing activities 360.00 (984.11)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents LA 156.75 8.27
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year* 8.27 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 165.02 8.27

*As on Apr 01, 2022 Cash & Cash equivalent amounting to Rs 2,486.08 lakhs is transferred to IFSL ("Erstwhile KIFS") on account of business combination

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 1
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

Notes:

(a) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-7) - Statement of Cash Flow

As per our report of even date
For Shinde Nayak and Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants InCred Prime Finance Limited

CAI\Firm Registration No.: 119906W CIN: U74895MH1991PLC340312
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InCred Prime Finance Limited
(formerly known as Incred Financial Services Limited)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

(1)

A.

Material Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information

Corporate Information

InCred Prime Finance Limited (formerly known as Incred Financial Services Limited) (“Company”) was
incorporated in India on 8 January 1991, under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.

The Company received a Certificate of Registration from the Reserve Bank of India ('RBI'), on 30th
August 2000 to' commence/carry on the business of Non-Banking Financial Institution ('NBFC')
without accepting public deposits. The Company currently holds a Certificate of Registration from
RBI bearing number B-13.02395 The Company qualifies to be a NBFC - Systematically Important Non-
Deposit taking Company as per Master - Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systematically
Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions
2016, as amended (the “Master Directions”).

The registered office of the Company is Unit No. 1203, 12th floor, B Wing, The Capital, Plot No. C -
70, G Block, Bandra - Kurla Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai — 400051

The standalone financial statements are authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on
June 11, 2024.

Basis of preparation

The standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from
time to time and notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) along with other
relevant provisions of the Act, the RBI Master Directions and notification for Implementation of
Indian  Accounting Standard vide circular RBI/2019-20/170 DOR(NBFC).CC.PD.No.109
/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020 (‘RBI Notification for Implementation of Ind AS') issued
by RBI. The Company uses accrual basis of accounting except as explained in Note D15.

Functional and presentation currency

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (‘INR’), which is also the
Company’s functional currency. All the amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs,
unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of measurement

The standalone financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention
except for the following items:

a. Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value
Net defined benefit asset / liability — plan assets are measured at fair value less present
value of defined benefit obligation; and

C. Share-based payments - measured at fair value on initial recognition




InCred Prime Finance Limited
(formerly known as Incred Financial Services Limited)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of standalone financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the
management to make estimates, judgements and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and
assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of financial
statements, reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Actual results may
defer from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions in the
accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

Significant accounting estimates and judgements:

i Business model assessment

il. Fair value of financial instruments

iii. Effective interest rate (EIR)

iv.  Impairment of financial assets

V. Provision for tax expenses

vi.  Residual value, useful life and indicators of impairment and recoverable value of property,
plant and equipment

Presentation of financial statements

The standalone financial statements of the Company are presented as per Division Il of Schedule I,
as amended, of the Companies Act, 2013 applicable to NBFCs, as notified by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’). The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as per the
requirements of Ind AS 7, Statement of Cash Flows. The disclosure requirements with respect to
items in the Balance Sheet and Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the
Schedule Ill to the Act, are presented by way of notes forming part of the financial statements along
with the other notes required to be disclosed under the notified Accounting Standards and RBI
regulations to the extent applicable.

The Company generally reports financial assets and financial liabilities on a gross basis in the Balance
Sheet. They are offset and reported net only when Ind AS specifically permits the same or it has an
unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent
on a future event. Similarly, the Company offsets incomes and expenses and reports the same on a

net basis when permitted by Ind AS.

Material accounting policies and other explanatory information

1. Measurement of fair values

The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values for
financial instruments.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair
values. The management has the overall responabshty for overseeing all significant fair value
measurements, including Level 3 fair values.




InCred Prime Finance Limited
(formerly known as Incred Financial Services Limited)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

The management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments.
If third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair
values, then the management assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support
the conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the
fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair values of a financial asset or a financial liability, the Company uses
observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a
fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

» Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

= level 2:inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

» Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability, the Company uses
observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset
or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement
is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input
that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.

2. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is defined as any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity
and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Trade receivables and payables,
loan receivables, investments in securities and subsidiaries, debt securities and other
borrowings, preferential and equity capital are some examples of financial instruments.

All financial instruments are at amortised cost, unless otherwise specified.

All the financial instruments are recognised on the date when the Company becomes party to
the contractual provisions of the financial instruments. For tradable securities, the Company
recognises the financial instruments on settlement date.

i. Financial assets
Initial measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value including transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets except in the case of financial assets recorded at
FVTPL where the transaction costs are charged to profit or loss. Generally, the transaction price
is treated as fair value unless proved to the contrary.

N




InCred Prime Finance Limited
(formerly known as Incred Financial Services Limited)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
- Amortised cost;
- Fair value through other comprehensive income (‘FVOCI’)

- Fair value through profit and loss (‘FVTPL’)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the
period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets. The Company
classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at amortised cost (net of
any write down for impairment), unless the asset is designated at FVTPL:

i.  the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to
collect contractual cash flows; and

ii. the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest (‘SPPI’) on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets measured at Fair value through other comprehensive Income (‘FVOC!’)

A financial asset is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

i.  the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

ii. the contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (‘SPPI’) on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (‘FVTPL’)

A financial asset which is not classified in above category is subsequently measured at FVTPL.
Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are recognized entirely in the
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Subsequent measurement
The assets classified in the aforementioned categories are subsequently measured as follows:

Financial assets at Amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost at each reporting period using the
effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in standalone statement of

and loss. ;




InCred Prime Finance Limited
(formerly known as Incred Financial Services Limited)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

Debt investments at FVOC|

These assets are subsequently measured at each reporting period at fair value. Interest income
under the EIR method, foreign gains and losses and impairment are recognised in Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCl. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to Standalone Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Equity investments designated at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at each reporting period at fair value. Dividends are
recognised as income in standalone statement of profit and loss unless the dividend clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in OCl and are not reclassified to standalone statement of profit and loss .

Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at each reporting period at fair value. Net gains and
losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in Standalone Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability
is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading or it is designated as on initial
recognition.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to
the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of payables, net of
directly attributable and incremental transaction cost.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance
costs profit and loss.

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) when the contractual rights to receive cash
flows from the financial asset expires or it transfers the rights to receive to receive the
contractual cash flows in a transaction in which the Company neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the
asset. ‘




InCred Prime Finance Limited
(formerly known as Incred Financial Services Limited)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company sells, assigns (including Co-lending transaction) its loans to counter-parties
wherein the risk and reward of the asset is transferred for the entire/substantial portion of
the Loan. As per Ind AS 109, Financial assets are derecognized on the date of assignment.
Any right on interest on sold portion of asset is recognized as a financial asset at fair value,
basis the scheduled cash flows on execution of the transaction estimated for prepayments
and defaults. Estimated costs to be incurred for servicing the de-recognised portion is
recorded as servicing liability at fair value.

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying
amount (measured at the date of de-recognition) and the consideration received (inciuding
any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) shall be recognized in profit or loss.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its
balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial assets subsequently measured at amortised cost are generally held for collection
of contractual cashflow. The Company on looking at economic viability of certain portfolios
measured at amortised cost may enter into immaterial and infrequent transaction for sale
of loans which doesn’t affect the business model of the Company.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and
the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and presented on net basis in the balance
sheet when there is a current legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts
and it is intended to either settle on net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.




InCred Prime Finance Limited
(formerly known as Incred Financial Services Limited)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

vi.

Derivatives recorded at fair value through profit and loss

A derivative is a financial instrument or other contract with all three of the following
characteristics:

e Its value changes in response to the change in a specified interest rate, financial
instrument price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates,
credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided that, in the case of a non-
financial variable, it is not specific to a party to the contract (i.e., the 'underlying').

e It requires no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than
would be required for other types of contracts expected to have a similar response
to changes in market factors.

e |tis settled at a future date.

The Company enters into derivative transactions with various counterparties to hedge its
foreign currency risks, interest rate risks and equity price risks, respectively. These include
cross-currency swaps, forward foreign exchange contracts, futures and options on equities.

Derivatives are recorded at fair value and carried as assets when their fair value is positive
and as liabilities when their fair value is negative. Changes in the fair value of derivatives
are included in net gain on fair value changes unless hedge accounting is applied.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid instrument that also includes a non-
derivative host contract with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined
instrumentvary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative. An embedded derivative causes
some or all of the cash flows that otherwise would be required by the contract to be
modified according to a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price,
foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other
variable, provided that, in the case of a non-financial variable, it is not specific to a party to
the contract. A derivative that is attached to a financial instrument, but is contractually
transferable independently of that instrument, or has a different counterparty from that
instrument, is not an embedded derivative, but a separate financial instrument.

If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset / financial liability within the
scope of Ind AS 109, the Company does not separate embedded derivatives. Rather, it
applies the classification requirements contained in Ind AS 109 to the entire hybrid contract.

Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives
and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related
to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or designated
at fair value though profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss, unless designated as effective hedging
instruments.




InCred Prime Finance Limited
(formerly known as Incred Financial Services Limited)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

3. Share capital

Equity and preference shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable
to the issuance of new ordinary shares and share options are recognised as a deduction
from equity, net of any tax effects.

4, Investment in subsidiaries

Investment in subsidiaries is carried at cost less impairment if any in the standalone
financial statements.

5. Business Combination

Business combinations of entities under common control are accounted using the “pooling
of interests” method and assets and liabilities are reflected at the predecessor carrying
values and the only adjustments that are made are to harmonise accounting policies. The
figures for the previous periods are restated as if the business combination had occurred at
the beginning of the preceding period irrespective of the actual date of the combination.

6. Impairment of financial assets

Overview of the Expected Credit Losses (‘ECL’) principles

- The Company records allowance for expected credit losses for all loans, other debt financial
assets not held at FVTPL, together with financial guarantee contracts, in this section all
referred to as ‘financial instruments’. Equity instruments are not subject to impairment
under Ind AS 109.

- The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset
(the lifetime expected credit loss), unless there has been no significant increase in credit
risk since origination, in which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected
credit _Ioss)

- Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is the portion of Lifetime ECL
that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.

Both Lifetime ECLs and 12-month ECLs are calculated on either an individual basis or a
collective basis, depending on the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial
instruments. The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end
of each reporting period, of whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, by considering the change in the risk of default
occurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument. The Company does the
assessment of significant increase in credit risk at a borrower level. Based on the above, the

Company categorises its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 as described b ---:‘
r’O

®
A
2
@
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Stage 1

All exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition or that has low credit risk at the reporting date and that are not credit impaired
upon origination are classified under this stage. The Company classifies all standard
advances and advances upto 30 days default under this category. 12’month ECL is
recognized on stage 1 exposures,

Stage 2

All exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition but are not credit impaired are classified under this stage. 30 Days Past Due is
considered as significant increase in credit risk. Lifetime ECL is recognized for exposures with
significant increase in credit risk.

Stage 3

All exposures assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred are classified in this
stage.

W.e.f October 1, 2022, a financial instrument is considered as Stage 3 if the asset crosses 90
days pass due and remains in overdue category. This is aligned to the definition of default
for loan assets stipulated in RBI circular dated November 12, 2021 — “Prudential Norms on
Income Recognition, Asset classification and Provisioning pertaining to Advances —
Clarifications” (the "RBI circular"). For exposures that have become credit impaired, a
lifetime ECL is recognized. Stage 3 exposures represent Non-Performing Assets (NPA).

Credit-impaired financial assets:

At each reporting period, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at
amortised cost and FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when
one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.

- Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

a) Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

b) A breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

¢) The restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company
would not consider otherwise;

d) It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

e) The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The mechanics of ECL:

The Company calculates ECLs based on probability-weighted scenarios to measure the
expected cash shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the EIR. A cash shortfall is the
difference between the cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive.

The mechanics of the ECL calcylations are outlined below and the key elements
follows: B \
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Probability of Default (PD) - The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of
default over a given time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the
assessed period, if the facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the
portfolio.

While estimating the PD, the Company reviews macro-economic developments occurring in
the economy and market it operates in. On annual basis, the Company analyses if there is
any relationship between key economic trends like GDP, unemployment rates, private
consumption rate, Gross national saving/investment, real wholesale & retail trade and
services with the estimate of PD. Typically, these macro-economic scenarios span a base
case, plus an upside and downside scenario.

The ECL model allows for multiple macro-economic scenarios to be reflected in a
probabilistic manner. The weights are reviewed on annual basis.

Exposure at Default (EAD)- The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a
future default date.

Loss Given Default (LGD)- The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the
case where a default occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, including
from the realisation of any collateral. It is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD. For
products where empirical data is available LGD is determined based on historical recoveries.
For other products in absence of enough historical data, LGD rates are adopted from RBI
circular “Implementation of the Internal Rating Based (IRB) Approaches for Calculation of
Capital Charge for Credit Risk” by RBI dated December 22, 2011.- (RBI/2011-12/311
DBOD.No.BP.BC.67/21.06.202/2011-12) .

The Company may also make additional impairment allowance based on its assessment of
risk profile and create safeguard from potential future events.

Write-offs

The Company writes off Retail secured and unsecured loans which have a days past due
(DPD) for more than 18 months and 15 months respectively. However, Small and Medium
Enterprises (SME) Secured and Unsecured Loans, are written off on a case-to-case basis,
based on the probability of recoverability. Any subsequent recoveries against such loans are
credited to the statement of profit and loss.

7. Hedge accounting
The Company makes use of derivative instruments to manage exposures to interest rate
risk and foreign currency risk. In order to manage particular risks, the Company applies

hedge accounting for transactions that meet specified criteria.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents
the hedge relationship to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting
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includes the Company'’s risk management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge, the
hedging/economic relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being
hedged, hedge ratio and how the Company would assess the effectiveness of changes in the
hedging instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item’s
cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective
in achieving offsetting changes in cash flows and are assessed on an on-going basis to
determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting
periods for which they were designated.

During the year, hedges that meet the criteria for hedge accounting and qualify as cash flow
hedges are accounted as follows:

Cash flow hedge

A cash flow hedge is a hedge of the exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable
to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability and could affect profit or
loss. For designated and qualifying cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the cumulative
gain or loss on the hedging instrument is initially recognised directly in OCI within equity
(cash flow hedge reserve). The ineffective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging
instrument is recognised immediately as finance cost in the Statement of Profit and Lass.
When the hedged cash flow affects the Statement of Profit and Loss, the effective portion
of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recorded in the correspording income or
expense line of the Statement of Profit and Loss.

When a hedging instrument expires, js sold, terminated, exercised, or when a hedge no
longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss that has been
recognised in OCI at that time remains in OCl and is recognised when the hedged forecast
transaction is ultimately recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that
was reported in OCl is immediately transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

8. (Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash
and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are
considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

9. Share-based payment arrangements

a.  The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the
grant is made using an appropriate valuation model.

b.  That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment
reserves in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditi
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reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest.

c.  When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense
recognised is the expense had the terms not been modified, if the original terms of the
award are met. An additional expense is recognised for any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification. Where an award is cancelled by the
entity or by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award is
expensed immediately through the Standalone Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

d. The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the
computation of diluted earnings per share.

10. Lease Accounting

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements
of Ind AS 116. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term
(including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together
with both periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably
certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if
the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. The Company revises the
lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes right — of — use
(“ROU”) asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a
lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low
value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the |lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount
of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the
commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They
are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortised cost at the present value of the future
lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the incremental borrowing
rates.

11. Income Tax
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in Statement of

Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or to an item
recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income (‘OCI’).
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Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss
for the period and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous
years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to
be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is
measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company:

a) has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
b) intends to realise the asset or settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes.

Deferred tax is not recognised for:

temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction
that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
and loss; and

temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries and associates to the
extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting
date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit
will be realised. Such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits
improves. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted as on the reporting date. Taxes
relating to items recognised directly in equity or OCl is recognised in equity or OCI.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:

a) the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current

tax liabilities; and %
) ‘:!.:\': \ N/
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b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on the same taxable entity.

12. Property, plant and equipment

i. Recognition and measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises:

(i) its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after
deducting trade discounts and rebates,

(ii) any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Income and expenses related to the incidental operations, not necessary to bring the item
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management, are recognised in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

ii. Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

iii. Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on straight line basis as per the useful life given under Schedule li
of the Companies Act, 2013, and is generally recognised in the Standalone Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Depreciation on additions / (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e., from / (upto)
the date which the asset is ready for use / (disposed of).

The useful life as per Schedule Il are as follows:

Asset Useful life as per Schedule Il
Buildings 60 years

Furniture & fixtures 10 years

Office equipment 5 years

Computers and printers 3 years

Vehicles 8 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted if appropriate. Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice,
the management believes that its estimated useful life as given above best represent
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13. Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets (computer software) are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of an intangible asset comprises its
purchase price including any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently
recoverable from the taxing authorities), and any directly attributable expenditure on
making the asset ready for its intended use and net of any trade discounts and rebates.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure on an intangible asset is capitalised only when it increases the
future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other
expenditures are recognised in the Statement Profit and Loss as incurred.

Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated
residual values over their estimated useful life using the straight-line method, and is included
in depreciation, amortisation and impairment in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

The intangible assets are amortised over the estimated useful life of 3 years.

Amortisation methods, useful life and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted if appropriate.

14, Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying values of these assets at each balance sheet date are reviewed to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of these asset is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the carrying amount of these assets exceed the estimated recoverable amount, an
impairment loss is recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for such excess
amount.

In respect of assets (except goodwill) for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior
periods, the Company reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that
the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such reversal of
impairment loss is recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of deprecia '
recognised. :
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15.

16.

Revenue from operations

Recognition of interest and fee income or expense:

Dividend income is recognised on the date on which the Company's right to receive the
payment is established.

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised
cost of the liability. However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired
subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the recoverable amount of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-
impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

Fee and commission income:

The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers (other than financial
assets to which Ind AS 109 ‘Financial instruments’ is applicable) based on a comprehensive
assessment model as set out in Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’. The
Company identifies contract(s) with a customer and its performance obligations under the
contract, determines the transaction price and its allocation to the performance obligations
in the contract and recognises revenue only on satisfactory completion of performance
obligations.

Loan related charges such as cheque bounce charges, foreclosure charges, are recognised
only on receipt basis.

Income from de-recognition of assets:

Gains arising out of de-recognition transactions comprise the difference between the
interest on the loan portfolio and the applicable rate at which the transaction is entered
into with the transferee, also known as the right of excess interest spread (EIS). The future
EIS basis the scheduled cash flows on execution of the transaction estimated for
prepayments and defaults, discounted at the applicable rate entered into with the
transferee is recorded upfront, net off estimated cost, in the statement of profit and loss.
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17.

18.

iil.

Finance Cost

Finance costs include interest expense computed by applying the effective interest rate on
respective financial instruments measured at amortised cost.

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is
recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the
employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Contribution to provident fund and ESIC

Company’s contribution paid/payable during the period to provident fund and ESIC is
recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

Gratuity

The Company'’s liability towards gratuity scheme is determined by independent actuaries,
using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation
is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market
yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms
approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the
defined benefit obligation. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the
Statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans, comprising of actuarial gains / losses, return on
plan assets excluding interest income are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with
corresponding debit or credit to Other Comprehensive Income (OCl). Remeasurements are
not reclassified to Statement of profit and loss in the subsequent period.

Compensated absence
The Company does not have a policy of encashment of unavailed leaves for its employees

and are not permitted to carry forward the leaves. Hence there is no liability towards
compensated absence.




InCred Prime Finance Limited
{(formerly known as Incred Financial Services Limited)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

19.

20.

21,

22.

Foreign currency

Transaction and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the
Company at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the
average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency transactions are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency,
using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. At each closing date, foreign currency
monetary items are reported using the closing exchange rate.

Exchange differences that arise on settlement of monetary items or on reporting at each
balance sheet date of the Company’s monetary items at the closing rate are recognized as
income and expenses in the period in which they arise.

Non-monetary items that are'measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of transactions. Non-monetary items that
are measured at fair value in a foreign currency shall be translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value was determined. Exchange differences are recognised in
the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share (‘EPS’) is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) after tax
for the period attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit / (loss) after tax for the
year attributable to the equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

Statement of Cash flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted
for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or
future operating cash receipts or payments and items of income or expenses associated
with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and
financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Segment Reporting

The Company operatesin a single reportable segment i.e., financing, since the nature of the
loans are exposed to similar risk and return profiles hence they are collectively operating
under a single segment. The Company operates in a single geographical segment i.e.
domestic. '
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23. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

a. Provisions

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The expenses relating to a provision is presented in the Standalone Statement of Profit and
Loss.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows specific to the liability. The unwinding of the
discount is recognised as finance cost.

b. Onerous contracts

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived
from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations
under the contract. The provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the
expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the
contract. Before a provision is established, the Company recognises any impairment loss on
the assets associated with that contract.

c. Contingent liabilities

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation that may, but will probably not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a
possible obligation of a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of
resources is remote, no disclosure is made.

The Company has a process whereby periodically all long term contracts (including
derivative contracts) are assessed for material foreseeable losses. The Company assesses
its obligations arising in the normal course of business, including pending litigations,
proceedings pending with tax authorities and other contracts including derivative and long
term contracts periodically and ensures that appropriate treatment has been made as
required under Ind AS.

d. Contingent assets

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, contingent
assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an economic benefit will
arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs.

Provisions, contingent assets, contingent liabilities and commitments are reviewed at each
reporting date.
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24,

25.

Exceptional items

When items of income and expense within profit or loss from ordinary activities are of such
size, nature or incidence that their disclosure is relevant to explain the performance of the
enterprise for the period, the nature and amount of such items is disclosed separately as
exceptional items.

Standards issued but not yet effective upto the date of issuance of the financial
statements

There are no standards that are notified and not yet effective as on date.
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2. Cash and cash equivalents

(Rs. in lakhs)
} As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balances with banks 165.02 8.27
Total 165.02 8.27
3. Loans
(Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Amortised cost

Amortised cost

(i) Term loans (unsecured) 0.28 332.03
Total - Gross 0.28 332.03
Less: Impairment loss allowance (0.04) (187.00)
Total - Net of impairment loss allowance 0.24 145.03
4. Investments
) (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars As et
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
At Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)
- Mutual funds 813.00
Total - Gross 813.00 -
Investments in India 813.00 -
Total - Gross 813.00 -
Less: Allowance for impairment - -
Total - Net (G- H -J) 813.00 -
5. Other financial assets
(Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Amortised cost Amortised cost
Receivable from related parties (Refer note 27) 1.08 -
Receivable from Government 21.08 17.46
Interest Receivable on Income tax refund - 130.96
Others 0.23 0.13
Total 22.39 148.55
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6. Deferred tax

The major components of deferred tax assets arising on account of timing differences are as follows:

(Rs. in lakhs)
Partieilave Net balance Recognised in Demerger Recognised| Net balance as at
April 01, 2023 profit or loss Adjustment in OCI * March 31, 2024
Deferred tax assets
Provision for impairment loss on financial instruments 47.07 (47.06) - - 0.01
Provision for retirement benefit plans 031 0.78 - 0.20 1.29
Provision on business loss - 129.52 - - 129,52
(A) 47.38 83.24 - 0.20 130.82
Deferred tax liabilities
(B) - - = - =
Deferred tax asset (net) (A-B) 47.38 83.24 - 0.20 130.82
{Rs. in lakhs)
ol Net balance Recognised in Demerger Recognised| Net balance as at
April 01, 2022 profit or loss Adjustment in OCI March 31, 2023
Deferred tax assets
Provision for impairment loss on financial instruments 2,282.81 (7.18) (2,228.56) - 47.07
Provision for retirement benefit plans 78.99 0.31 (78.99) - 0.31
Disallowance of merger expenses 148.69 - (148.69) - -
Lease liability 67.27 - (67.27) - =
Fair value change on financial instruments 57.92 - {57.92) - -
Difference between written down value of property plant
and equipment and Intangible assets as per the books of]
accounts and income tax 98.51 - (98.51) - -
(A) 2,734,18 (6.87) {(2,679.93) 47.38
Deferred tax liabilities
EIR impact on financial instruments (2.97) - 2.97 - %
Others (692.55) (1.62) 694,17 - -
(B) {695.52) (1.62) 697.14 - -
Deferred tax asset (net) (A-B) 2,038.66 (8.49) (1,982.79) - 47.38
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InCred Prime Finance Limited
(formerly known as InCred Financial Services Limited)

_Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

8. Other non-financial assets

(Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Amortised cost Amortised cost
Advances recoverable in kind (Unsecured, considered good) 1.08 0.43
GST receivable 10.43 895.87
Total 11.51 896.30
9. Borrowings (other than debt securities)
(Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Amortised cost Amortised cost
(a) Inter corporate borrowings from related parties 360.00 -
Total 360.00 -
10. Other financial liabilities
(Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Amortised cost

Amortised cost

Provision for expenses 10.49 2.09
Payable to Related parties - 1,108.00
Payable towards salary - 0.21
Total 10.49 1,110.30
11. Provisions
(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars
As at As at
March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Provision for employee benefits (Refer Note 28) 54.41 1.27
Total 54.41 1.27
12. Other non-financial liabilities
(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Statutory dues payable 221 223.48
Total 2.21 223.48
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InCred Prime Finance Limited
(formerfy known os inCred Financiol Services Limited)

Notes to the Standalone Financial St

13, Equity share capital

Rs. in lakhs)
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Particulars Number Amount Number Amount
Authorlsed Capital
[Equity shares of Re. 1/- each 20,11,00,00,000 2,01,100.00 20,11,00,00,000 2,01,100.00
Total 20,11,00,00,000 2,01,100.00 20,11,00,00,000 2,01,100.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
Equity Shares of Re. 1/- each fully paid up 38,80,25,963 3,880.26 38,80,25,963 3,880.26
Total 38,80,25,963 3,880.26 38,80,25,963 3,880.26

Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Re, 1 per share fully paid up. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. If proposed to be paid, the
Company shall declare and pay dividend in Indian Rupees and the same will be proposed by the Board of Directors and would be subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing

Annual General Meeting except in the case of interim dividend.

In the event of liguidation of the company, the halders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amaunts, The
distribution will be in proportion 1o the number of equity shares held by the sharehelders.

Equity shares held by holding company

Out of the equity shares issued by the company, shares held by its holding company :

Name of shareholder

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

No. of shares held Amount No. of shares held Amount
InCred Haldings Limited (formerly known as KKR Capital Markets India Limited) 23,03,73,125 2,303.73 23,03,73,125 2,303.73
Total 23,03,73,125 2,303.73 23,03,73,125 2,303.73
Equity shares held by promaoters of the company
Out of the equity shares issued by the company, shares held by its promoters:

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Name of shareholder

No. of shares held % of shares held No. of shares held % of shares held
InCred Holdings Limited (formerly known as KKR Capital Markets India Limited) 23,03,73,125 59.37% 23,03,73,125 59.37%
Bhupinder Singh 25,19,554 0.65% 25,19,554 0.65%
Total 23,28,92,679 60.02% 23,28,92,679 60.02%
Details of shareholder(s) holding more than 5% of the total equity shares in the company :

Name of shareholder AfETMaTdial 2024 As at March 31, 2023

No. of shares held % Holding No. of shares held % Holding

InCred Holdings Limited (farmerly knawn as KKR Capital Markets India Limited),
. 23,03,73,125 59.37% 23,03,73,125 59.37%

the holding company
InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited 4,11,89,668 10.62%) 1,05,41,439 2.72%)
Oaks Assel Management Private Limited (formerly known as "Alpha Capital
Advisers Private Limited A/C PMS") 0.00%, 2,58,81,606 6.67%)
Total 27,15,62,793 69.99% 26,67,96,170 68.76%

Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period for a period of five years inmediately preceding
During the current financial year the Company has issued Nil equity shares for consideration other than cash (Previous year: Nil).

Equity shares reconciliation

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Number Amount Number Amount
At the beginning of the year 38,80,25,963 3,880.26 35,45,02,651 35,450.26
Add: Issued during the year
Shares issued during the year N = - -
Stock options exercised during the year - = 43,688 4.37
Preference shares converted (nto equity shares - - 3,34,79,624 3,347.96
Less: Impact of reduction in face value per share from fs. 10to Re 1 . . . (34,922.33)
At the end of the year 38,80,25,963 3,880.26 38,80,25,963 3,880,26
17 (B). Pref share capital

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Particulars Number Amount Number Amount
Autharised Capital
Prelerence Shares of Rs, 1/- each 95,00,00,000 9,500.00 95,00,00,000 9,500.00
Total 95,00,00,000 9,500.00 95,00,00,000 9,500.00

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
Preference Shares of Rs. 1/- each fully paid

Total

Terms/rights attached 1o preference shares

fe

Each Cumulative C y Convertible Pr
convertible within a period of 19 years from the date of their issue.

Each holder of CCCPS shall have such rights to attend and vote at general meetings as prescribed by the C

Act and other

Share ("CCCPS") shall be a 0.001% coupon preference share denominated in Indian Rupees and shall be Tully and cumulatively compulsarily

ble laws from time to time and as specified under the

Articles of Association. Further to the aferesaid, for the purpose of voting, the holder of the CCCPS shall be deemed to have converted all its CCCPS into Equity Shares and shall have voting rights
pany on as “as canverted” basis or Fully Diluted Basis, i.e., assuming the conversion of all the CCCPS

on every resolution placed before the Company on the basis of its sharahalking in the Cam

held by it inte Equity Shares,
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InCred Prime Finance Limited
(formerly known as InCred Financial Services Limited)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

15. Interest income

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

On financial assets measured at amortised cost:

-Interest on loans 5.81 74.85
-Interest on deposits with banks 12.74 -
Total 18.55 74.85
16. Fees and commission income
(Rs. in lakhs)
! Year ended Year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Loan servicing and administration charges 0.03 2.61
Total 0.03 2.61
17. Net gain/ (loss) on fair value changes
(Rs. in lakhs)
Year ended Year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss

-Investments 3.00 -
Total 3.00 -
18. Other income
(Rs. in lakhs)

Particaiie Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest on Income tax refund 2.71 130.97
Other income - 3.07
Total 2.71 134.04
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InCred Prime Finance Limited

(formerly known as InCred Financial Services Limited)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

19. Finance costs

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

On financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:

{i) Interest on Inter Corporate Debts ("ICD") 0.49 18.00
Total 0.49 18.00
20. Impairment on financial instruments
(Rs. in lakhs)
Year ended Year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

On Financial instruments measured at amortised cost:

{i) Loans (including amount written off, net of recovery) 76.01 23.51
Total 76.01 23.51
21. Employee benefits expenses
(Rs. in lakhs)

Patticias Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Salaries and wages 201.33 50.88
Contribution to provident and other funds 4.89 0.88
Staff welfare expenses 3.06 0.62
Retirement Benefit expenses (Refer Note 28) 3.05 0.16
Total 212.33 52.54
22. Other expenses

(Rs. in lakhs)
5 Year ended Year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Information Technology expenses 0.06 -
Collection expenses - 11.98
Legal, professional and consultancy charges 33.66 12.04
Office Expense 1.02 -
Travelling and conveyance 1.04 1.53
Payment to auditors 1.31 1.00
Directors' sitting fees (Refer Note 27) 21.67 29.78
Stamp Duty & Filing fees 0.51 e
Bank charges - 0.55
Corporate Social responsibility (Refer Note 32) - 43.43
Miscellaneous expenses 24.13 -
Total 83.40




InCred Prime Finance Limited
(formerly known as InCred Financial Services Limited)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

Payment to the auditors:

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Auditor's remuneration

- Audit fees 131 1.00
Total 1.31 1.00
23. Tax expense
{a) Amounts recognised in profit and loss

(Rs. in lakhs)

Panticsie Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Current tax expense
Current year 37.60 6.64
Current tax expense 37.60 6.64
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (83.24) 8.49
Deferred tax expense (83.24) 8.49
Tax expense for the year (45.64) 15.13
(d) Reconciliation of effective tax rate

(Rs. in lakhs)

prtio Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Profit before tax as per Statement of profit and loss (A) (348.36) 16.64
Statutory tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate (B) (87.68) 4.19
Tax effect of:
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible in calculating
taxable income 5.09 10.94
Tax pertaining to prior year 37.60 -
Other adjustments (0.65) -
Effective tax amount (45.64) 15,13
Effective tax rate 13.10% 90.92%

)




InCred Prime Finance Limited
{formerly known as InCred Financial Services Limited)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

24. Earnings per share

Basic and diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted

average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

i. Profit attributable to Equity shareholders:

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Year ended March|Year ended March
31,2024 31, 2023
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company used in calculatin
e - R 5 (302.72) 1.51
basic earnings per share
P_rofit attributjtable to equity holders of the Company used in calculating (302.72) L8
diluted earnings per share
ii. Weighted average number of ordinary shares
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Weighted ber of equity sh sed as the denominator i
eig t? aver.age nu..lm e quity shares u e rin 38,80,26,000 38,80,26,000
calculating basic earnings per share (A)
Adjustments for calculation of diluted earnings per share (B) - -
Weighted average number of equity shares and potential equity shares
used as the denominator in calculating diluted earnings per share {A+B 38,80,26,000 38,80,26,000
Basic earnings per share)* -0.08 0.00
Diluted earnings per share)* -0.08 0.00

*EPS for Fy 2022-23 is beyond two decimal point
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(formerly known as InCred Financiol Services Limited)

Notes to the Standal Financial §

26, Financial risk management

In the course of its business, the Company Is exposed to certain financial risks namely credit risk, interest risk, market risk & liquidity risk, The Company's primary focus is to achieve better predictability
of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. The financial risks are managed in accordance with the Company’s risk management policy which has
been approved by its Board of Directors,

The Company’s beard of directars has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framewark. The board of directors has established the Risk
Management Committee, which is for d ping and I the Company's risk management policies. The committee reports regularly to the board of directors on its activities,

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and contrals and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities,

A. Credit risk

Credit risk is the nisk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty 1o a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations i.e, receivables from customers, investments in debt
securities etc, Credit risk arises from loans and advances, investments carried at amortized cost and deposits with banks and financial institutions,

i} Credit risk management
The Company key ebjective is to maintain a strong culture of respensible lending, and robust risk policies and control frameworks . The Company considers various factors, which provide an assessment

of the borrower’s ability-to-pay and willingness-to-pay. While the techniques used for assessment vary across product-segments, the credit principles remain a common factar.

The key factors considered include;

- Income and cash flow analysis: The borrower’s income for multiple sources is assessed, along with the borrowers ot ligations and financial c Hence, the funds available to repay the

loan/EMI is computed, and the loan is tailored to be affordable to the borrower, For certain product types working capital gap is also calculated.

- Credit histery analysis: The borrower's experience in managing debt is considered. Prior delinquencies and considered. A strang repayment track record is typically an indicator of the customer’s

willingness-to-pay. Exceptions and nuances, like customers with a limited credit history but with strengths like job-tenure or asset-ownership, are also considered 1o make appropriate credit decisions.
- Barrower’s profile and intended use of the funds: The borrower’s intended use of funds is considered as a part of the credit process, including the calculation of working capital cycle for certain
product types. In some product-segments, the use of funds may be certified by the horrawer or controlled by disbursing directly 1o the end-use. Borrower profiles which are not in targeted market-

segmenlts are screened out,

- Security cover provided: The Company has a well defined credit policy which lays out the security to be provided, In certain cases, providing the relevant collateral is a pre-condition for loan sanction.

- Collectability and geo-location: , The borrower's location, accessibility, stability and contact-ability are all considered before loan sanction. In cases where there are doubts or concerns about any of

these lactors, an adverse adjustment to the risk-profile is made.

The Company has separate data science/analytics team which monitors the vintage curve, bounce rates, collection efficiency, portfolio metrics and delinquencies further periadic re-audit of existing
cases to unearth delinquency trends and credit learnings.

Measurement of Expected Credit Losses ['ECL')

The Company has segmented its outstanding portfolia based on the risk prefiles i.e. risk management policies, historical experiences with respect to default rates etc, for the computation of ECL.

A three-stage model for impairment based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition has been implemented. The Company has used Days Past Due ('DPD’) basis for staging of the portfolio and
has apted for the rebuttable presumption prescribed by the standard 1o recognize default in case payments are overdue 50 days and a Significant Increase in Credit Risk ('SICR’) in case payments are
overdue for more than 30 days.

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime expected credit loss), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since origination,
in which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit loss).

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECLis the portion of Lifetime ECL that represent the
ECLs that result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.

Both Lifetime ECLs and 12-month ECLs are calculated on either an individual basis /collective basis, depending on the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments. The Company has
established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a finandial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by considering the
change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument. The Company does the assessment of significant increase in credit risk at a borrower level. Based an the above,
the Company categorises its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3. Considering the current macro economic scenario, due to Covid, the probability of defaults have been Increased over and above the
historical trends across product verlicals.

DPD Status stage Basis for recognition of ECL
Loans Investments
Current Stage 1 12 Month's ECL 12 Month's ECL
1-30 days Stage 1 12 Month's ECL 12 Month's ECL
31-90 days Stage 2 Life Time ECL Life Time ECL
90 + days Stage 3 Life Time ECL Life Time ECL

Further, the Company on the basis of its assessment of credit risk classifies loans under Stage 2 irrespective of its overdues status during the peried, including loans under one-time resolution (OTR)
Iramewaork prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) for COVID-19 related stress. These accounts are upgraded to Stage 1 as and when they demonstrate satisfactory behaviour under the revised
repayment schedule.




InCred Prime Finance Limited
(formerly known as InCred Financiol Services Limited)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements
As at March 31, 2024

{Rs. in lakhs}
i Net i
Rarticulars Asset group ST Expected credit losses St
amount amount
Stage 1 Term Loans 0.28 0.04 0.24
Stage 2 Term Loans - - =
Stage 3 Term Loans = - L

As at March 31, 2023
(Rs. in lakhs)

Graoss carryl Net carryi
Particulars Asset group L Expected credit losses e
amount amount
Stage 1 Tern Loans 69.75 0.02 69.73
Stage 2 Term Loans = - -
Stage 3 Term Loans 262.28 186.98 75.30

Collateral held

The Company periodically menitors the quality as well as the value of the security to meet the prescribed limits. The collateral held by the Campany varies on case to case basis and Includes:

i) First/Subservient charge on the Land and/or Building of the project or other projects

Ii) First/Subservient charge on the fixed and current assets of the barrower

iii) Hypothecation over receivables fram funded project or other projects of the berrower

iv) First loss guarantee default (FLDG) in the form of cash collateral, lien on fixed deposits eic.

The Company measures the amount of ECL on a financial instrument in a way that reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount. The Company considers its historical loss experience and
adjusts the same for current observable data. The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the probability of default, loss given default and exposure at default, These parameters are derived from
the Company's internally developed statistical models and other historical data. In addition, the Company uses reasonable and supportable information on future econamic conditions Including
macroeconomic factors such as services, GDP, recarded unemployment, growth rate, current account balance etc. Since incorporating these forward laoking information increases the judgment as to
how the changes in these macroecanomic factor will affect ECL, the hodol i

gy and are it d regularly.
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(iii) Reconciliation of Loan exposure and Loan loss allowance

For Loan exposure
The below table signifies movernent of gross carrying ameunt:

(Rs. in lakhs)

Reconciliation of Loan exposure Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

Loan exposure on March 31, 2022 3,49,541.03 21,971.46 10,811.36
Tranfer of Credit exposure on account of Demerger (3,48,743.26) (21,899.45) (10,432.03)
Loan exposure on April 01, 2022 797.77 72.00 379.33
Change in opening credit exposure (725.84) {70.44) (120.78)
New credit exposures during the year, net of repayment® - - =
Transferred to 12-month ECL 047 (0.42) (0.06)
Transferred to Lifetime ECL not credit impaired . = -
Transferred to Lifetime ECL credit impaired {2.65) (1.15) 3.80
Write - offs - - -
Loan exposure on March 31, 2023 69.75 0.00 262.28
Change in opening credit exposure {69.47) (0.00) 6.11
New credit exposures during the year, net of repayment* - - -
Transferred to 12-month ECL = e -
Transferred to Lifetime ECL not credit impaired - - =
Transferred to Lifetime ECL credit impaired - - -
Write - offs - - (268.39)
Loan exposure on March 31, 2024 0.28 - -
*represents outstonding balonce of loan exposures originated during the year as ot reporting dote,
For Loan loss allowance:

(Rs. in lakhs)

Reconciliation of loss allowance Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

Loss allowance on March 31, 2022 2,461.45 1,229.09 5,406.89
Tranfer of Credit exposure on account of Demerger (2,445.88) (1,213.24) (5.222.84)
Loss allowance on April 01, 2022 15.57 15.84 184.05
Change in opening credit exposure (15.69) {17.81) 4.99
New credit exposures during the year, net of repayment® - - a2
Transferred to 12-month ECL 0.20 (0.16) {0.04)
Transferred to Lifetime ECL not credit impaired - - -
Transferred to Lifetime ECL credit impaired {0.08) 213 {2.05)
Write - offs - - -
Loss allowance on March 31, 2023 (0.00) (U.IJO_U 186.96
Change in opening credit exposure 0.04 0.00 81.43
New credit exposures duning the year, net of repayment” - - -
Transferred to 12-month ECL - -
Transferred to Lifetime ECL not credit impaired - *
Transferred to Lifeume ECL credit impaired - - -
Write - offs - = {268.39)
Loss allowance on March 31, 2024 0.04 = £

*represents aurstending balunce of loss ollowonce on loan exposures originati

For investments

ed during the year as ot

{Rs. in lakhs)
Reconciliation of loss allowance Stage 1
Loss allowance an March 31, 2022 9.28
Tranfer on account of Demerger (9.28)
Loss allowance on March 31, 2023 -
Changes in loss allowances due to Assets used or released -
Loss allowance on March 31, 2024 -
For loan commitments
(Rs. in lakhs)
Reconciliation of loss allowance Stage 1
Loss allowance on 31 March 2022 9.42
Tranfer on account of Demerger (9.42}

Loss allowance on 31 March 2023

Changes in loss allowances due 1o Assets used or released

Loss allowance on 31 March 2024

reporting dote.

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

There are no financial assets and Financial liabilities which are subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arr

and similar ag
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26. Financial risk management (continued)

B. Liquidity risk

Liquidity Risk refers to insufficiency of funds to meet the financial obligations. Liquidity Risk Management implies maintenance of sufficient cash and marketable securities and the
availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit lines to meet obligations when due.

The Company has formulated an Asset Liability Management Policy. The Asset Liability Management Committee (‘ALCO') is responsible for the management of the Company's short-
term, medium-term and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by assessing the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The following tables detail the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of the financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. To
the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the rate applicable as of reporting period ends respectively has been considered.

As at March 31, 2024 (Rs. in lakhs)
Contractual cash flows
Particulars Note No Gross nominal
Carryi Less than 1 - rs 3-5 years
rying amount inflow/(outflow) n1year 1-3 yea v After 5 years
Maturities of financial liabilities
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 9 360.00 (360.00) (380.19) -
Other financial liabilities 10 10.49 (10.49) (10.49) -
Total 370.49 (370.49) {390.68) -
As at March 31, 2023 (Rs. in lakhs)
Contractual cash flows
Particulars Note No Gross nominal
i t L h 1-3 35
Carrying amoun inflow/(outflow) ess than 1 year years years After 5 years
Maturities of financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities 10 1,110.30 (1,110.30) (1,110.30) -
Total 1,110.30 (1,110.30) {1,110.30) -

The following table details the Company's expected maturity for its financial assets. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial
assets including interest that will be earned on those assets, The inclusion of information is necessary in order to understand the Company's liquidity risk management as the liquidity is
managed on a net asset and liability basis, Hence, maturities of the relevant assets have been considered below.

As at March 31, 2024

{Rs. in lakhs)

Contractual cash flows

Faticuiors HDRENS Carrying amount inilf:sj?:gfl[li) Less than 1 year 1-3 years 3-5years After 5 years

Maturities of financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 2 165.02 165.02 165.02 -

Loans 3 0.24 0.28 0.28 -

Investments (other than subsidiaries) 4 813.00 813.00 813.00

Other financial assets 5 22.39 22.39 22.39 -

Total 1,000.66 1,000.70 1,000.69 -

As at March 31, 2023 (Rs. in lakhs)

Contractual cash flows

Rergclars Pt e Carrying amount m‘::i;?i":;:i) Less than 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years After 5 years

Maturities of financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 2 8.27 8.27 8.27 -

Loans 3 145.03 332.03 332.03 -

Other financial assets 5 148,55 148.55 148.55 -

Total 301.85 488.85 488.85 -
it
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26. Financial risk management (continued)

C. Market risk

Market risk or Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company is exposed to interest rate risk
through the impact of rate changes on interest-bearing liabilities and assets. The Company manages its
interest rate risk by monitoring the movements in the market interest rates closely. The Company has Asset
and Liability Management Committee (ALCO) and has empowered it to assess the interest rate risk run by it
and provide appropriate guidelines to the Treasury to manage the risk. The ALCO reviews the interest rate
risk on periodic basis.

Exposure to interest rate risk

Company's interest rate risk arises majorly from borrowings, loans and investments. The interest rate profile
of the Company'’s interest-bearing financial instruments as reported to the management of the Company is
as follows.

{Rs. in lakhs)
Nominal amount
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Loans
Fixed rate loans 0.28 296.65
Total 0.28 296.65
Debt and Borrowings
Fixed rate Borrowings 360.00 -
Total 360.00 -

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed-rate financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

D. Other Price risk

The Company is exposed to price risk arising from investment in mutual funds and classified in the balance
sheet at fair value through profit & loss. If the NAV of the mutual fund had been higher/ lower by 1% from
market price existing as at March 31, 2024, profit or loss(pre-tax) for the year ended March 31, 2024 would
increase/ decrease by Rs. 0.03 lakhs (Previous Year: Rs. Nil) with a corresponding increase/decrease in the
Total Equity of the Company as at March 31, 2024.
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27. Related party disclosures

Key managerial personnel ("KMP")

Name of the KMP

Designation

Mr. Bhupinder Singh
Mr. Vivek Bansal
Mr. Karnam Sekar
Mrs. Rupa Rajul Vora
Ms. Nikita Vora

Mr. Bhavyesh Jain
Mr. Sunil Harlalka
Mr. Shailesh Kumar

Mr. Jay Lalwani

Director
Director
Independent Director
Independent Director

Company Secretary (upto April 28, 2023)
Company Secretary (w.e.f. June 14, 2023 )

Manager

Chief Financial Officer (upto May 31, 2023)
Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. June 01, 2023}

Holding Company

1. InCred Holdings Limited {(erstwhile known as KKR Capital Markets India Limited) w.e.f. July 26, 2022

Enterprises where key management personnel exercises significant influence
. InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited

InCred Wealth Private Limited

InCred Asset Management Private Limited

InCred Capital Wealth Portfolio Managers Private Limited

. InCred Research Services Private Limited

. InCred Alternative Investments Private Limited

. InCred Wealth and Investment Private Limited

Fellow subsidiaries:

1. InCred Financial Services Limited (erstwhile known as KKR India Financial Services Limited) w.e.f July 26, 2022

A. Names of related parties and nature of relationship

Holding Company

Country of

Proportion of ownership interest

Incorporation (% holding)
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

InCred Holdings Limited {formerly known as KKR Capital Markets Pvt Ltd) India 59.37% 59.37%
Transactions with key management personnel

i. Key management personnel compensation {Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended March | Year ended March

31,2024 31, 2023
Employee benefit expenses 75.17 40.08
Directors' sitting fees* 21.67 29.78

* Includes accrual for current year

As the liabilities for gratuity and share based payments are provided on actuarial basis for the Company as a whole and hence the amounts pertaining to the key

management personnel are not included in the above.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

27. Related party disclosures (continued)

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant financial
(Rs. in lakhs)

Fellow Subsidiaries Enterprises owned or controlled by KMP

Nature of transactions

For the year ended | For the year ended | For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance Sheet transactions
Transfer in of gratuity liability 15.97 - - s

ICD taken - - 360.00 -

Summary of balance receivable from / payable to the above related parties are as follows:
(Rs. in lakhs)
Enterprises owned or controlled by Key

Balance outstanding Subsidiaries

For the year ended | For the year ended | For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ICD Payable - - 360.00 E
Other Receivables 1.08 - - -
Notes:

* Other than those mentioned, there are no debts due by directors or other officers of the company or any of them either severally or
jointly with any other person or debts due by firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a director or a
member.

No Loans or Advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under Companies
Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person.
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28, Employee benefits

1. The Company has recognised the following amounts in the Profit & Loss Account towards contributions to provident fund and other
funds:

(Rs. in lakhs)
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Provident fund 4.89 0.88
2. Gratuity

Every employee who will complete five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn) for each
completed year of service, subject to ceiling of INR 20,00,000.

Table showing change in the present value of projected benefit obligation

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars sk (L
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Change in benefit obligations
Present value of benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 1.27 313.85
Tranfer on account of Demerger - (312.74)
Interest cost 0.09 -
Current Service cost 2.95 0.16
Liability Transferred InfAcquisition 15.97 -
Actuarial Loss / {Gains) on Obligations - Due to Change in Demographic Assumptions 0.10 -
Actuarial Loss / (Gains) on Obligations - Due to Change in Financial Assumptions 0.62 -
Actuarial Losses on Obligations - Due to Experience 0.06 -
Liability at the end of the year 21,06 1.27
Amount recognized in the Balance Sheet
(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars At et
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Present value of benefit obligation at the end of the year {21.06) (1.27)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year
Funded Status (Deficit) {21.06) (1.27)
Net (Liability)/Asset Recognized in the Balance Sheet (21.06) (1.27)
Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current service cost 2.95 0.16
Interest cost 0.09 -
Expenses recognised 3.04 0.16 .
Expenses recognized in the Other comprehensive income (OCI) / sy "_J 3 N
(Rs. in lakhs) | Ilf’ 0y
Pl Year ended Year ended . Gl ome iy
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 Ve gl
Actuarial Loss / (Gains) on obligation for the year 0.78 - ! \ 3
Net Loss / (Income) for the year recognized in OCI 0.78 - N e
The actuarial assumptions used to determine benefit obligations as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are as follows; 3
il Year ended Year ended W
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Discount Rate 7.14% 7.20%
Salary escalation rate 9.00% 8.00%
Expected Rate of return on Plan Assets N.A N.A
Rate of Employee Turnover 30% 35%
Weighted Average Duration of Projected Benefit Obligation 5years 5 years
Mortality Rate during employment Indian Assured Lives | Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2012-14) | Mortality (2012-14)
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The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant

factors

Balance sheet reconciliation

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars S 3

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening net liability 1.27 313.85
Tranfer on account of Demerger - (312.74)
Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss 3.04 0.16
Expenses recognized in OC| 0.78 -
Net (Asset) Transfer In 15.97 -
Net liability recognized in the Balance Sheet 21,06 1.27
Cash Flow Projection
Maturity analysis of the benefit payments: from the employer

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Ok post

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting
1st following year 6.06 0.00
2nd following year 4.62 0.22
3rd following year 3.51 0.36
4th following year 2.67 0.32
5th following year 2.13 0.22
Sum of years 6 to 10 5.03 0.44
Sum of years 11 and above 1.37 0.09
Sensitivity analysis

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars psat st

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Projected benefit obligation on current assumptions 21.06 1.25
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of discounting {0.46) {0.04)
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of discounting 0.49 0.04
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of salary increase 0.59 0.05
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of salary increase (0.59) (0.05)
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of employee turnover (0.04) (0.03)
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of employee turnover 0.04 0.03

Qualitative disclosures

Gratuity is a defined benefit plan and company is exposed to the Following Risks:

Interest rate risk: A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the G.5ec. Rate will increase the present value of the liability requiring higher

provision.

Salary risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As such, an

increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability.

Asset Liability Matching Risk: The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. Company has to manage pay-out based on pay as

you go basis from own funds,

Maortality risk: Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not have any

longevity risk.

29. Contingent

There are no litigations and proceedings against the Company which requires any provision or disclosure as contingent liability.
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30. Current and Non-current maturity

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled:

(Rs. in lakhs)
As at March 31, 2024 Asat March 31, 2023
Particulars X 3
Within 12 months | After 12 months Total Within 12 months | After 12 months Total

ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 165.02 - 165.02 8.27 - 8.27
Loans 0.24 - 0.24 145.03 - 145,03
Investments 813.00 - 813.00 = - -
Other financial assets 22,39 - 22.39 148.55 - 148.55
Sub total 1,000.65 - 1,000.65 301.85 = 301.85
Non-financial assets
Current Tax assets (Net of provision for tax) 75.41 - 75.41 1,183.68 - 1,183.68
Deferred Tax assets (Net of deferred tax liabilities) - 130.82 130.82 - 47.38 47.38
Property, plant and equipment - 0.12 0.12 - 0.54 0.54
Other non-financial assets 11.51 - 11.51 896.30 - 896.30
Sub total 86.92 130.93 217.85 2,079.98 47,91 2,127.89
Total assets 1,087.57 130.92 1,218.49 2,381.83 47.90 2,429.73
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Borrowings {other than debt securities) 360.00 - 360.00 - - s
Other financial liabilities 10.49 - 10.49 1,110.30 - 1,110.30
Sub total 370.49 - 370.49 1,110.30 - 1,110.30
Non-Financial liabilities
Provisions 54.41 - 54,41 1.27 - 1.27
Other non-financial liabilities 2.21 - 2.21 223.48 - 223.48
Sub total 56.62 - 56,62 224.75 - 224.75
Total liabilities 427.11 - 427.11 1,335.05 - 1,335.05

31. Foreign currency transactions

The Company does not have any foreign currency transaction in the current and previous year

32. Corporate social responsibility

The Company Demerged and transferred majority of assest to new IFSL. However since the company had profit for the last 3 year the CSR liability is recorded in its books.

(Rs. in lakhs)

B Year ended Year ended
articulars
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Amount required to be spent as per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013: - 44.70
Amount spent during the year
(i) Construction/ acquisition of any asset R 5
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above

In cash - 43,43

Yet to be paid in cash - -
Total - 43.43
Details related to spent obligations:
i) Contribution to Public Trust % 43.43
ii) Contribution to Charitable Trust - .
iil) Covid vaccination other than employees and family members - -
iv) Unspent amount in relation to:
- Ongoing project - -
- Other than ongoing project - -
Total - 43.43

33. Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an Office Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should
mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum. Based on the information available with the
management, as at 31 March 2023, no dues were outstanding to micro and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006,
Further, the Company has not received any claim for interest fr_om any supplier under the said Act till 31 March 2024,
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34. Capital Management

The Company maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business which includes
issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to equity holders of the Com pany.

As a NBFC, the RBI requires us to maintain a minimum capital to risk weighted assets ratio ("CRAR") consisting of
Tier | and Tier |l capital of 15% of our aggregate risk weighted assets. Further, the total of our Tier II capital cannot
exceed 100% of the Tier | capital at any point of time. The capital management process of the Company ensures to

maintain a healthy CRAR at all the times.

The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies
with externally imposed capital requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order

to support its business and to maximise shareholder value.

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars fsiat L
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Common Equity Tierl (CET1) capital 649.13 1,047.32
Other Tier 2 capital 10.73 0.02
Total capital 659.86 1,047.35

Regulatory capital consists of CET 1 capital, which comprises share capital, share premium, retained earnings
including current year profit and loss. Certain adjustments are made to Ind AS—based results and reserves.

Refer Note 38 (2) for further details.

35. Ratio Analysis and its elements

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

Ratio S 5023 % change
CRAR (%) 76.91% 87.98% -12.58%
CRAR - Tier | Capital (%) 75.66% 87.98% -14.00%
CRAR - Tier Il Capital (%) 1.25% 0.00% 78117.63%

Liquidity Coverage Ratio*

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

*Not Applicable as the Company is a Non-Deposit taking NBFC with an asset size of less than Rs. 5,000 Crore as

stipulated in the Master Directions.

CRAR : (Tier | Captital + Tier Il Capital) / Total Risk Weighted Assets
CRAR - Tier | Capital : Tier | Capital / Total Risk Weighted Assets
CRAR - Tier Il Capital : Tier Il Capital / Total Risk Weighted Assets
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36. Composite Scheme of Arrangement:

The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on September 3, 2021, had approved the Composite Scheme of Arrangement (the ‘Scheme’) with
KKR Capital Markets India Private Limited, Bee Finance Limited, InCred Prime Finance Limited (formerly known as "InCred Financial Services Limited and the
Company) and the same was filed with various regulatory authorities and National Company Law Tribunal.

The NCLT passed the final order dated May 6, 2022 . The Scheme was made effective by the Board of Directors of the Company, InCred Prime Finance Limited
and KKR Capital Markets Limited at their meetings held on July 26, 2022 and the relevant filing wers done with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai on July 26,
2022,

The Appointed date of the Scheme is April 1, 2022, and accordingly the books of account and financial results effecting the Scheme have been prepared with
effect from April 1, 2022.

Under the Scheme, the identified NBFC business of InCred Prime Finance Limited (formerly, InCred Financial Services Limited) (‘erstwhile IFSL’) shall be demerged
with InCred Financial Services Limited (formerly, KKR India Financial Services Limited) {‘new IFSL’). As per the terms of the Scheme, the Board of Directors of
erstwhile InCred Financial Services Limited have been appointed as the directors of the new IFSL constituting majority. Further, with the discharge of purchase
consideration for demerger, the sharehalders of erstwhile IFSL will hold majority shareholding of the new IFSL.

As per the Scheme, the remaining NBFC business (i.e after excluding identified NBFC business demerged under the Scheme) shall continue 1o be carried out by
erstwhile IFSL. Accordingly, the net assets of Rs. 1,077.31 lakhs pertaining to the remaining NBFC business will continue to remain in the erstwhile IFSL.

Particulars INR in lakhs INR in lakhs
(i) Assets
Loans 1,033.58|
Other assets 2,213.71
(ii) Liabilities
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 1,000.00
Other liabilities 1169.98
|Ne1 Assets retained (i-ii) 1,077.31
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37 .Other Statutory Information

During the current year and previous year:
(i) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any Benami property.
(ii) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.
(i)
The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
(iv) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency.
(v) The quarterly statement of current assets submitted to banks / financial institutions which are provided as security
against the borrowings are in agreement with the books of accounts.

(vi) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall :

(1) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(1) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

{vii) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with
the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(1) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(1) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
{vii) The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or

disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 {such as, search or survey or

any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.
(ix} There are no scheme of arrangements which have been filed by the Company under the Act and which have been

approved by the competent authority u/s 232 to 237 of the Act. For details of Scheme of arrangement filed by the
Company with NCLT refer Note no 36.

(x) The Company, being a Non-Banking Financial Company ("NBFC") registered with the Reserve Bank of India as a
systematically important NBFC, the provisions of sec 2(87) read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules,
2017 are not applicable.

(xi) The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other lender.

{xii) The Company has not revalued any property plant and equipment and intangible assets.
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38. Additional disclosures required by Reserve Bank of India ('RBI')

1  Fraud reported during the year
The Company has reported frauds aggregating Rs. Nil (previous year: Rs. NIL. ) based on management reporting to risk committee and

to the RBI through prescribed returns FMR-1.

2 Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR)
The ratios calculated in accordance with the guidelines of Reserve Bank of India, are as under:

vi)

Risk weighted asset

Particulars Aol LEL)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

i) CRAR (%) 76.91% 87.98%
ii) CRAR - Tier | Capital (%) 75.66% 87.98%
iii)  CRAR - Tier Il Capital (%) 1.25% 0.00%
iv)  Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-| capital - -
v) Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments - -

857.99 1,190.44
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{c)

Investments
(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars gt Asiat
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
(1) Value of investments
(i) Gross value of investments
(a) In India 813.00 -
(b) Outside India =
(ii) Provisions for depreciation
(a) In India " "
(b) Outside India - -
{iii) Net value of investments
(a) In India 813.00 -
(b) Outside India - e
(2) Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments
(i) Opening balance - 9.28
(i} Add : Provisions made during the year s :
(iii) Less : Write-off/(write-back Jof excess provisions during the year - (9.28)
(iv) Closing balance - -
Derivatives
(a) Forward rate agreement/interest rate swap
(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Az at AR
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
(i) The notional principal of swap agreements - -
(ii) Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfill their obligations under
the agreements : )
(iii) Collateral required by the applicable NBFC upon entering into swaps - -
(iv) Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps - =
(v) The fair value of the swap book - .
(b) Exchange traded interest rate derivatives
The Company has not traded in exchange traded interest rate derivative during the current and previous year.
Disclosures on risk exposure in derivatives
Qualitative disclosure
Details for qualitative disclosure are part of accounting policy as per financial statements.
Quantitative disclosure
As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

(i) Derivatives (notional principal amount) for hedging
(ii) Marked to market positions
(a) Asset
(b) Liability
(iif) Credit exposure
(iv) Unhedged exposures
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5 Disclosures relating to securitisation

(a) Details of Financial Assets sold to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction - NIL (PY: NIL)

(b) Disclosures pursuant to RBI Notification - RBI/DOR/2021-22/86 DOR.STR.REC.51/21.04.048/2021-22 dated September 24, 2021

I} Details of transfer through co-lending in respect of loans not in default during the the year ended March 31, 2024

{Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

i) |Amount of Loan accounts assigned

ii) |Retention of Beneficial Economic Interest (in%)
iii) |Weighted Average Maturity (in Years)

iv) |Weighted Average Holding Period (in Years)

v) |Coverage of tangible security Coverage (in%)

NA
NA

NA
NA

21/63/FIDD.CO.Plan.BC.N0.8/04.09.01/2020-21

1) Details of overdue loans (NPA and SMA) transferred during the year ended March 31, 2024 and

March 31, 2023:

The above transaction is pursuant to Co-lending option Il (Direct Assignment) pursuant to RBI notification RBI/2020-

Nil
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Exposure to sensitive sector

Exposure to real estate sector (Rs. in lakhs)
z As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

ajli)

al(ii)

a)liii)

Direct Exposure

Residential Mortgages -

Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be occupied by the
borrower or that is rented

Commercial Real Estate -

Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (office buildings, retail space, multi-
purpose commercial premises, multi-family residential buildings, multi-tenanted commercial
premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development and
construction, etc.), Exposure would also include non-fund based limits

Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitised exposures -

a. Residential

b. Commercial Real Estate

Indirect Exposure

Fund based and non based exposures on National housing Bank and Housing Finance

Companies

Exposure to capital market

{Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

Asat
March 31, 2023

il

{ii)

{iii)

(iv)

v)

{vi)

{vii)

{viii)

Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of
equity-oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt;

Advances against shares/bonds/debentures or other securities or on clean basis to individuals
for investment in shares (including IPOs/ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures,
and units of equity-oriented mutual funds;

Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures
or units of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as primary security;

Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of shares or|
convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e.
where the primary security other than shares/convertible bonds/convertible debentures/units
of equity oriented mutual funds 'does not fully cover the advances;

Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of]
stockbrokers and market makers;

Loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares/bonds/debentures or other
securities or on clean basis for meeting promoter's contribution to the equity of new
companies in anticipation of raising resources;

Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows/issues;

All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and unregistered)

Total exposure to capital market

Detalls of financing of parent company products - Not Applicable (PY: Not Applicable)

Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit {GBL) exceeded by the NBFC
The Company has exposure limits for Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) in the current year of Rs. 813.00 lakhs and Nil in previous year,

Unsecured advances
The Company has not granted unsecured advances against collateral of intangible securities such as charge over the rights, licenses, authority.
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11 Miscellaneous

(a)  Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators
Particulars

Reg. Number
B-13.02395
U74899MH1%91PLC340312

RBI Registration Number (COR)

(b)

{c)

(d)

12
(a)

(b)

(c)
(e ()

(e} (i)

(c) (iii}

(c) (iv)

Corporate Identification number (CIN)

Disclosure of Penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators: NIL (PY:NIL)

Related Party Transactions

Refer Note 27 to the Financial statements for the transaction with the related parties.

Credit rating

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Long term bank facilities

NA

NA

Secured Non-Convertible Debenture

NA

NA

Secured Non-Convertible Debenture (Public
Issue)

NA

NA

Secured Market Linked Debentures

NA

NA

Short term bank facilities

NA

NA

Commercial Paper

NA

NA

Additional disclosures
Provisions and contingencies

[Rs. in lakhs)

Break up of 'Provisions and contingencies'
shown under the head expenditure in Profit
and Loss account

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Provisions for depreciation on investment
Provision towards NPA/ Write off
Provision made towards income tax
Provision for Standard Assets

(186.96)

0.04

{31.42)

Draw down from reserves

During the year, the Company has not drawn down any amount from Reserves.

Concentration of Advances, Exposures and NPAs

Concentration of advances

{Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

Asat
March 31, 2023

Total advances to twenty largest borrowers
Percentage of advances to twenty largest
borrowers to total advances of the NBFC

0.28

100.00%

187.41

56.44%

Concentration of exposures

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars

Asat
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Total exposure to twenty largest
borrowers/customers

Percentage of exposures to twenty largest
borrowers/customers to total exposure of the

NBFC on borrowers/customers

100.00%

187.41

56.44%

Intragroup Exposures

Company does not have any Intragroup Exposure.

Concentration of NPAs

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Total exposure to top four NPA accounts

53.04
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(e} (v)

Sector-wise exposure and NPAs

{Rs. In lakhs)
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Total Exposure (includes % Gross NPAsto | Total Exposure R Croos NP A ts
Sector on balance sheet and .| (includes on balance :
Gross NPAs | total exposure in Gross NPAs total exposure in
off-balance sheet sheet and off-balance
that sector that sector
exposure) sheet exposure)
1. Agriculture and Allied Activities - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
2. Industry (Micro and Small, Medium and
Large) - - 0.00% N - 0.00%
2.1. Micro and Small - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
2.2. Medium - - 0.00% - . 0.00%
2.3. Large - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
3. Services 0.28 - 0.00% 332.04 262.28 3.75%
3.1. Transporl Operators - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
3.2. Computer Software - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
3.3. Tourism, Hotels and Restauranis - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
3.4. Shipping - - 0.00% - - -
3.5. Aviation - - - - = -
3.6. Professional Services - - 0.00% 11.48 11.48 100.00%
3.7. Trade - - 0.00% 302.53 237.03 78.35%
3.7.1. Wholesale Trade (other than food
procurement) o - 0.00% 2 = 0.00%
3.7.2. Retail Trade - - 0.00% 302.53 237.03 78.35%
3.8. Commercial Real Estale - - 0.00% = = -
3.9. Non-Banking Financial Companies
(NBFCs) of which, - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
3.9.1, Housing Finance Companies {HFCs) - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
3.9.2. Public Financial Institutions (PFls) - - - - - -
3.10. Olher Services* 0.28 - 0.00% 18.02 13.77 76.44%
4. Personal Loans - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
4.1, Consumer Durables - - - - - -
4.2, Housing (Including Priority Sector
Housing) - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
4.3. Advances against Fixed Deposils - - - - - 0.00%
4.4. Advances to Individuals against share,
bonds, etc, = - - s = i
4.5. Credil Card Qutstanding - - - - - -
4.6. Educalion - - 0.00% = - 0.00%
4.7. Vehicle Loans - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
4.8. Loans against gold jewellery - - 0.00% - - -
4.9, Olher Personal Loans - - 0.00% = - 0.00%

* Other Services include services which are not indicated elsewhere.
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14

15

Movement of NPAs

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(i) |Net NPAs to net advances (%) 0.00% 51.92%
(ii) |Movement of NPAs (Gross)
(a) Opening balance 262.28 10,811.36
(b) Other adjustments - (10,432.03)
(c) Additions during the year - 3.80
(d) Reductions during the year 262.28 120.84
(e) Closing balance (0.00) 262.28
(iii) |Movement of Net NPAs
(a) Opening balance 75.31 5,404.46
(b) Other adjustments - (5,209.19)
(b) Additions during the year - 5.85
(c) Reductions during the year 75.31 125.80
(d) Closing balance (0.00) 75.31
(iv) |Movement of provisions for NPAs
(a) Opening balance 186.97 5,406.90
(b) Other adjustments - (5,222.84)
(c) Provisions made during the year - (2.05)
(d) Write-off of excess provisions 186.97 (4.96)
(e) Closing balance (0.00) 186.97

Overseas Assets (For those with Joint Ventures and Subsidiaries Abroad)

The Company does not have any joint ventures or subsidiaries abroad, hence not applicable.

In accordance with Master Direction Master Direction DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated September 01, 2016 Master Direction -
Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016, the Company has not lent against gold jewellery during the year ended 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: NIL)
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16 Customer Complaints

(Rs. in lakhs)
SrNo Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Compliants received by the NBFC from its customers
Number of complaints pending at the beginning of the year - -
2 Number of complaints received during the year - 7
3 Number of complaints disposed during the year - 7
3.1 Of which, number of compliants rejected by the NBFC - -
4 Number of complaints pending at the end of the year - -
Maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from the Office
of Ombudsman - 3
5¥ Number of complaints received by the NBFC from Office of Omb - 3
Of 5, number of complaints resolved in favour of the NBFC by
5.1 Office of Ombudsman - 3
Of 5, number of complaints resolved through conciliation/
57 mediation/ advisories issued by Office of Ombudsman - -
Of 5, number of complaints resolved after passing of Awards by
53 th Office of Ombudsman against the NBFC - -
Number of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated time
6 (other than those appealed) - -

*Maintainable complaints refer to complaints on the grounds specifically mentioned in Integrated Ombudsman Scheme, 2021 (Previously
The Ombudsman Scheme for Non-Banking Financial Companies, 2018) and covered within the ambit of the Scheme.

Top five grounds of complaints received by the NBFCs from customers

Number of % increase/ decrease in Of 5, number of
Grounds of complaints, |complaints pending the number of Number of complaints |complaints
(i.e. complaints relating |at the beginning of  |Number of complaints received during |complaints received pending at the end of |pending beyond
to) the year the year over the previous year |the year 30 days
1 2 3 4 5 6
For the year ended March 31, 2024
Collections related - - NA - -
Bureau Related - - NA - -
Total - - NA - -
For the year ended March 31, 2023
Collections Related = 5 NA - -
Bureau Related - 2 NA - -
Total - 7 NA - -
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17. Schedule to the Balance Sheet as per Master Directions

a  loans & Advances avalled by the Non-Banking Financial company Inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid:
(Rs. in lakhs)

Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Amount Amount
(1) |Liabilities side : di ding t overdue
Loans and advances availed by the NBFCs inclusive of Interest accrued
thereon but not paid:
{a) Debentures*
- Secured = . 4
= Unsecured - - -
{b) Deferred Credits ’ - - -
{c)} Term Loans - - -
{d) Inter-corporate loans and barrowing 360.00 3 -

Sr. No. Particulars

{e] Commercial Paper 2 . = .
{f) Public Deposits . . . -
(g) Other Loans - - i -

"other than falling within the meaning of public deposits

(2} |Assetsside:

Break-up of loans and advances including bills receivables:
{a) Secured - - -
{b) Unsecured 0.28 231.68 332.03 231.68

b Break up of Leased Assats and stock on hire and other assets counting towards asset financing activities

(Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Sr.No. Particulars

(i} |Lease assetsincluding lease rentals under sundry debtors:
(a) Financial lease -
(b} Cperating lease - -
(i) |Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
(a) Assets on hire - -
(b) Repossessed Assets - s
(iif) | Other loans counting towards AFC activities:
(3) Loans where assets have been repossessed - -
(b) Loans other than {a) above - -

c Break-up of investments:
(Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

5r. No. Particulars

Current investments :
Quoted:
(i) Shares : (3) Equity = N
(b) Preference - -
{ii) Debenture and bonds - =
{iii) Units of mutual funds 813.00 -
{iv) Government securities - =
{v) Others - =
2|Unquoted:
(i) Shares: (a) Equity - -
(b) Preference - =
(i) Debentures and bonds = =
(iii) Units of mutual funds - x
{iv) Government securities - -
(v} Others B &

-

Non- current investments:
1|Quoted:
(i) Shares : (a) Equity - -
{b) Preference - -
(ii) Debentures and bonds - -
(iiii) Units of mutual funds - -
(iv) Government securities - -
(v) Others B L
2|Unquoted:
(i} Shares: {a) Equity - -
(b) Preference - -
(i) Debentures and bonds &
(iii} Units of mutual funds - -
(iv) Government securities B -
{v) Others - =




InCred Prime Finance Limited
{formerly known as inCred Financial Services Limited)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

d  Borrower group-wise classification of assets, financed as in (3) and (4) above :

(Rs. in lakhs)
As at
Sr. No. Category March 31, 2024
Amount (Net of provisions)
Secured Unsecured Total

1. Related Parties
{a) Subsidiaries - - -
{b) Companics in the same group - - -
{c) Other related parties - -

2. Other than related parties * 0.24 0.24

Total - 0.24 0.24
(Rs. in lakhs)
As at
i SHeesy March 31, 2023
Amount (Net of provisions)
Secured Unsecured Total
1. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries .
(b) Companies in the same group = . =
(c) Other related parties - -
2. Other than related parties - 145.03 145.03

Total = 145.03 145.03

e Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted):
{Rs. in lakhs)

Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Market Value/ | BookValue(Net| MarketValue/ | Book Value {Net
Break up or fair of Provisions) Break up or fair | of Provisions)
value or NAV value or NAV

Sr.No. Category

1. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries . . . -
(b) Companies in the same group - - - z
(c) Other related parties - - s =

2. Other than related parties - - = u

Total - - - B

f  Otherinformation

(Rs. in lakhs)
Asat Asat
“No. Particul;
Sria artichtars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
()| Gross non-performing assets

(a) Related parties - -
(b) Other than related parties (0.00) 262.28
{ii}{ Net non-performing assets
(a) Related parties - -
(b) Other than related parties (0.00) 75.31
{iif) | Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt -




InCred Prime Finance Limited

(formerly known as InCred Financial Services Limited)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

18. Disclosure as per RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. N0.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated 4th November, 2019 -
Liquidity Risk Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment Companies

a

Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty

(Rs. in lakhs)

Number of Significant

Sr. No. [ Amount % of Total Deposits | % of Total liabilities
Counterparties
4 1 360.00 NA 84.29%
Top 20 large deposits : NA
Top 10 Borrowings
(Rs. in lakhs)
Amount % of Total borrowings
360.00 100.00%
Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product
(Rs. in lakhs)
Sr. No. Name of Instrument Amount % of Total liabilities
1 Term Loan 0.00|NA
2 Market Linked Debentures 0.00|NA
3 Non Convertible Debentures 0.00|NA
4 Commercial paper 0.00|NA
5 Cash Credit / WCDL 0.00|NA
6 External Commercial Borrowings 0.00{NA
7 Inter Corporate borrowings 360.00{NA

Stock Ratios

Sr. No. Name of Instrument % of Total public funds | % of Total Liabilities | % of Total Assets
a Commercial paper NA NA NA
Non-convertible debentures
b (Original maturity of less than 1
year) NA NA NA
c Other short term liabilities NA NA NA




InCred Prime Finance Limited
{formerly known as InCred Financial Services Limited)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

19. Restructuring of Loans

(Rs. in lakhs)
Type of Restructuring Others
sr. Asset Classification
No. Details Standard | Sub-standard | Doubtful Loss Total
1|Restructured Accounts as on April 1, 2023 No. of barrowers - - - - s

Amount outstanding

Provision thereson

[

Fresh Restructuring during the year

No. of borrowers

Amount outstanding

Provision thereon

Upgradations to restructured standard category during the FY

No. of borrowers

Amount outstanding

Provision thereon

Restructured Standard Advances which cease to attract higher provisioning
and/ or additional risk weight at the end of the FY and hence need not be
shown as restructured standard advances at the beginning of the next FY

No. of barrowers

Amount outstanding

Provision thereon

Down gradations of restructured accounts during the FY

No. of borrowers

Amount outstanding

Provision thereon

Write-offs of restructured accounts during the FY

No. of borrowers

Amount outstanding

Provision thereon

Restructured Accounts as on March 31, 2024

No. of borrowers

Amount outstanding

Provision thereon




InCred Prime Finance Limited
(formerly known as inCred Financial Services Limited)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

19. Restructuring of Loans {Continued)

{Rs. in lakhs)
Type of Restructuring Others
sr. Asset Classification
No. 7 Standard | Sub-standard | Doubtful Loss Total
Details
1|Restructured Accounts as on April 1, 2022 No. of borrowers 95 2,728 £ 5 2,823
Amount outstanding 10,117.32 1,524.73 - - 11,642.06
Provision thereon 428.05 843.66 - - 1,271.71
2|Fresh Restructuring during the year No. of borrowers 2 - = - -
Amount outstanding - - - - -
Provision thereon - - - - -
3|Upgradations to restructured standard category during the FY* No. of borrowers 95 2,728 - - 2,823
Amount outstanding 10,117.32 1,524.73 - - 11,642.06
Provision thereon 428.05 843.66 - - 1,271.71

Restructured Standard Advances which cease to attract higher
provisioning and/ or additional risk weight at the end of the FY and hence
need not be shown as restructured standard advances at the beginning of
4{the next FY

No. of borrowers

Amount outstanding

Pravision thereon

5|Down gradations of restructured accounts during the FY

No. of borrowers

Amount outstanding

Provision thereon

6| Write-offs of restructured accounts during the FY

No. of borrowers

Amount outstanding

Provision thereon

7|Restructured Accounts as on March 31, 2023

No. of borrowers

Amount outstanding

Provision thereon

"Cases are tranfered on account of Demerger




InCred Prime Finance Limited

(formerly known as InCred Financial Services Limited)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

20. Disclosure as per Section |l of RBI circular RBI/2022-23/26 DOR.ACC.REC.N0.20/21.04.018/2022-23 dated April 19, 2022

(A) Corporate Governance
1 Composition of Board
No. of shares
Number of Board Meetings No. of other Heldlin a:md
SrNo| Name of Director Director since Capacity DIN Director .convernble
ships* instruments
i aun held in the
eld durin
e .2 Attended NBFC
their tenure
1 [Mr. Bhupinder Singh December 13, 2016{Non-Executive Director |07342318 4 2 10 2519554
2 |Mr. Vivek Bansal June 12, 2018|Non-Executive Director [07835456 4 4 4 2250000
3 |Ms. Rupa Vora October 27, 2017|independent Director 01831916 4 4 8 &
4 |Mr. Karnam Sekar March 31, 2023|Independent Director 07400094 4 4 3 -

For Remuneration details, refer note No 27
*excluding number of directorship held in foreign entities.

Details of change in composition of the Board during the current and previous financial year

Nature of change

SrNo| Name of Director Capacity Effective date
1 |Mr. Bhupinder Singh [Non-Executive Director Redesignation July 26, 2022
2 |Mr. Vivek Bansal Non-Executive Director Redesignation July 26, 2022
3 |Mr. Debashish Dutta |Independent Director Resignation March 30, 2023
4 |Mr. Vivek Anand PS  [Non-Executive Director Resignation luly 27, 2022
S |Mr. Karnam Sekar Independent Director Resignation July 27, 2022
6 |Mr. Karnam Sekar Independent Director Appointment March 31, 2023

Where an independent director resigns before eapiry of her/ his term, the reasons for resignation as given by her/him shall be disclosed.

On account of the effectiveness of the Composite Scheme of amalgamation and arrangement amongst InCred Holdings Limited (formerly 'KKR Capital
Markets India Limited'), Bee Finance limited, InCred Financial Services limited (formerly 'KKR India Financial Services Limited'), InCred Prime Finance limited
(formerly 'InCred Financial Services Limited') ("the Company"), and their respective shareholders on July 26, 2022, which was approved by the National
Company Law Tribunal vide its order dated May 6, 2022, Mr. Karnam Sekar who was appointed as Independent Director of the Company, resigned before
completion of their term. However, he was again appointed as on Independent Directors on March 31, 2023 as per requirement of Companies Act, 2013,

Mr, Debashish Dutta Gupta who was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company, resigned before completion of his term on March 30, 2023, due
to his pre-occupation with other assignments.

None of the directors of the Company are related to each other.

2 Committees of the Board and their composition
AUDIT COMMITTEE
Number of Meetings of the
) Member of T Committee No. of shares held
SrNo| Name of Director Coriritaa shes Capacity (Held during IFthE NBEG
their Attended
tenure

1 |Ms. Rupa Vora October 27, 2017 Chairperson 4 4 -

2 |Mr. Bhupinder Singh July 26, 2022 Member 4 2 2519554

3 |Mr. Karnam Sekar March 31, 2023 Member 4 4 -




InCred Prime Finance Limited
(formerly known as InCred Financial Services Limited)

Notes

to the Standalone Financial Statements

The role of the AC includes the following:

= Oversight of the entity's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial Information to ensure that the financial statementls correct, sufficient
and credible;

» Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the entity;

= Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;

* Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon before submission to the board for approval, with
particular reference to:

a. matters required to be included in the director’s responsibility statement to be included in the board's report in terms of clause {c) of sub-section {3) of
Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;

b, changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

¢. major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of Judgment by management;

d. significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;

e. compliance with legal requirements relating to financial statements;

f. disclosure ofany related party transactions;

g. modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report;

* Reviewing, with the management, the financial statements before submission to the board for approval;

* Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses/ application of funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential Issue, etc.),
the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring
agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the board to take up steps in this
matter;

= Reviewing and monitoring the auditors independence and performance and effectiveness of audit process;

» Approval ar any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties;

= Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

« Valuation of undertakings or assets of the entity, wherever it is necessary;

« Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

= Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and Internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems:

* Reviewing the adequacy of Internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official
heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;

+ Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;

* Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of
internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the board;

« Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area
of concern;

= To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the debenture holders, shareholders {in case of nen-payment of declared dividends) and
creditors;

= To review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;

= Approval of appointment of Chief Financial Officer after assessing the qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the candidate;

= Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit committee;

= Reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding company in the subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% of the
asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower including existing loans / advances/ investments existing as on the date of coming into force of this provision;
= Consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving merger, demerger, amalgamation etc., on the entity and its
shareholders;

= Any such other role/function as may be specifically referred to the Committee by the Board of Directors or as may be required under the Companies Act,
2013 or any other law for the time beingin force.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Number of Meetings of the
= Member of .Committee No. of shares held
SrNo| Name of Director . ' Capacity Held during
Committee since in the NBFC

their Attended
tenure

1 [Mr. Bhupinder Singh June 13, 2021 Member 2 1 2519554

2 |Ms. Rupa Vora October 27, 2017 Member 2 2 -

3 |Mr. Karnam Sekar March 31, 2023 Member 2 2 -




InCred Prime Finance Limited
(formerly known as InCred Financial Services Limited)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

The role of the NRC includes the following:

« |dentification of persons qualified to become director, recommendations to the Board for their appointment /removal or filling of vacancies on the Board;

« |dentification of persons for appointment as the Senior Management Personnel of the Cornpany.

= Note: As per Section 178(5), "senior management personnel” of a Company means members of the core management team of the Co (excluding Board of
directors) comprising all members of management one level below the executive directors, including the functional heads.

» Administration and superintendence of the Employee Stock Option Schemes of the Company.

= Formulation, supervision and implementation of the following policies:

a. Appointment & Remuneration Policy for the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel's;

b. Employees Remuneration Policy;

. Polley for Annual Performance Evaluation of the Directors.

= Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the board of directors a
policy relating to, the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees;

For every appointment of an independent director, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and
experience on the Board and on the basis of such evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities required of an independent director. The
person recommended to the Board for appointment as an Independent director shall have the capabilities identified in such description. For the purpose of
identifying suitable candidates, the Committee may:

a. use the services of an external agencies, if required;

b. consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to diversity; and

c. consider the time commitments of the candidates

= formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent directors and the board of directors;

= whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the report of performance evaluation of independent
directors.

» recommend to the board, all remuneration, In whatever form, payable to senior management.

= Any such other role/furictions as may be specifically referred to the Committee by the Boar.d of Directors and/ or other committees of Directors of the
Company or as may be required under the Companies Act, 2013or any other law for the time being in force.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Number of Meetings of the
Committee
SrNo| Name of Director Cor“:ri]::ti::er ;:lce Capacity Held during Nu.]:t;;i;amr;sF:eld
their Attended
tenure
1 |Mr. Bhupinder Singh March 28, 2017 Member 2 2 2519554
2 |Mr. Vivek Bansal March 28, 2017 Member 2 2 2250000
3 |Mr. Shailesh Kumar* July 27, 2022 Member 0 0 2000
4 |Mr. Jay Lalwani May 16, 2023 Member 2 2 5000

*Ceased to be a member of the Committee w.e.f May 16, 2023




InCred Prime Finance Limited
{formerly known as InCred Financial Services Limited)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

The role of the RMC includes the following:

* Review and manage the Risk Management framework and processes of the Company in compliance with the regulatory provisions and
the best practices; '

= To formulate a detailed risk management policy which shall include:

a. A framework for identification of internal and external risks specifically faced by the Company, in particular including financial,
operational, sectoral, sustainability (particularly, ESG related risks), information, cyber security risks or any other risk as may be determined
by the Committee.

b. Measures for risk mitigation Including systems and processes for internal control of identified risks.

¢. Business continuity plan.

= To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to monitor and evaluate risks associated with the business
of the Company;

= To monitor and oversee implementation of the risk management policy, including evaluating the adequacy of risk management systems;
* To periodically review the risk management policy, at least once in two years, including by cansidering the changing industry dynamics
and evolving complexity;

= To keep the Board of Directors informed about the nature and content of its discussions, recommendations and actions to be taken;

* The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer (if any) shall be subject to review by the Risk Management
Committee.

* To review framework for monitoring and managing various types of risks including credit risk, market risk, fraud risk and status of
compliance with the Anti-Money Laundering (AML) Standards;

= To review the various risk related aspects of the loan and asset portfolio,

= To review and approve the various policies pertaining to the following:

a. Lending activities of the Company;

b. Know Your Customer (KYC)'and AML;

c. Recovery and Collections;

= Any such other role/functions as may be specifically referred to the Committee by the Board of Directors and/or other committees of
Directors of the Company or as may be required under the Companies Act, 2013 or any other law for the time being in force.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

Number of Meetings of the
s Member of H -Commnttee No. of shares held
SrNo| Name of Director ) p Capacity Held during .
Committee since 2 in the NBFC
their Attended
tenure
1 |Mr. Karnam Sekar March 31, 2023 Member 1 1 -
2 |Mr. Vivek Bansal March 25, 2019 Member 1 0 2250000
3 |Ms. Rupa Vora June 12, 2018 Member i 1 -

The role of CSR Committee includes the following:

« To finalize and appraise to the Board a CSR policy for the Company.

» To recommend CSR activities and expenditure on the same; and

» To monitor implementation of the CSR policy of the Company from time to time.

IT STRATEGY COMMITTEE

Number of Meetings of the
Committee
Member of ; - No. of shares held
SrNo| Name of Director Comnittes elce Capacity Held during in the NBEC
their Attended
tenure
1 |Mr, Vivek Bansal June 12, 2018 Member 2 2 2250000
2 |Mr. Karnam Sekar March 31, 2023 Member 2 2 -
3 |Ms. Rupa Vora June 12, 2018 Member 2 2 -
4 |Mr. Selvan Mohan* July 26, 2022 Member 2 2 -
5 |Mr. Viom Kumar September 08, 2023 Member 1 1 -
6 I, .ME-IFHDI'H September 08, 2023 Member 3 1 -
Kunjakishor

*Ceased to be a member of the Committee w.e.f September 08, 2023




InCred Prime Finance Limited
(formerly known as InCred Financial Services Limited)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

The role of ITSC includes the following:

= Approving Information Technology ("IT") strategy and policy documants and ensuring that the management has put an effective strategic
planning process in place;

» Ascertaining that management has implemented processes and practices that ensure that the IT delivers value to the business;

= Ensuring IT investments represent a balance of risks and benefits and that budgets are acceptable;

* Monitoring the method that management uses to determine the IT resources needed to achieve strategic goals and provide high-level
direction.for sourcing and use of IT resources;

* Ensuring proper balance of IT investments for sustaining NBFCs growth and becoming aware about exposure towards IT risks and
controls;

= To settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise In regard to the above matters; and

= Any such other role/functions as may be specifically referred to the Committee by the Board of Directors

ASSETS LIABILITY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Number of Meetings of the
Committee
their Attended
tenure
1 |Mr. Bhupinder Singh March 28, 2017 Member 2 2 2519554
2 [Mr, Vivek Bansal June 12, 2018 Member 2 2 2250000
3 |Mr. Shailesh Kumar* July 27, 2022 Member 0 0 2000
4 |Mr. Jay Lalwani May 16, 2023 Member 2 2 5000

*Ceased to be a member of the Committee w.e.f May 16, 2023

The role of the ALCQ includes the following:
« To review/ monitor the Asset Liability Management (ALM) profile and systems of the Company fram time to time;
* To monitor and manage the following by taking appropriate steps and recommending suitable measures to the Board:

Liquidity Risk;
Market Risk;
Interest Rate Risk;

Funding and Capital Planning
* To monitor and advise maturity profile and mix of the incremental Assets and Liabilities of the Company;

* To formulate Interest Rate view of the Company and advise future business strategy accordingly if required. To advise on appropriate mix

of between Fixed v/s Floating Interest Rate liabilities/ resources and assets etc.;
* To advise on Funding, Source & Mix of Liabilities, Product Pricing for the leans etc.;
= To advise on benchmark Floating Reference Rate (RFRR) and to amend/ change the same from time to time, as required;

* To review the ALM returns and take suitable remedial measures;

= To adopt, amend, revise and modify ALM Policy of the Company in compliance with the regulatory requirements;
= To assess the funding and capital planning for the Company;
* To advise roadmap for profit planning and growth projections of the Company.

FINANCE COMMITTEE
Number of Meetings of the
Committee
SrNo| Name of Director Mefnber D_f Capacity Held during plo chslares held
Committee since Ny in the NBFC
their Attended
tenure

1 |Mr. Bhupinder Singh April 10, 2018 Member 2 2 2519554

2 |Mr. Vivek Bansal June 12, 2018 Member 2 2 2250000

3 [Mr. Jay Lalwani September 08, 2023, Member 2 2 5000




InCred Prime Finance Limited
(formerly known as InCred Financial Services Limited)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

The role of the Finance Committee Includes the following:

* To approve borrowing of menies {otherwise than by issue of debentures) by way of availing financial facilities from financial institution(s)
/ bank(s) or other entities In form of term loan(s), guarantee(s), line of credit or in any other forms ("Facilities"), within the overall limits
approved by the Board / shareholders, in connection with our Company's business requirement and taking necessary actions connected
therewith;

= To appoint security trustee(s) and/or create charge/mortgage in favour of the lenders of the company

= To consider opening of bank accounts with various banks, apply and avail corporate Internet banking, fax indemnity facility, email
indemnity, online account statement viewing facility with respect to account maintained with various banks and to revise signatories for
operating various bank accounts of the company as and when necessary;

= To review and approve an Assignment/ Securitizatlon transaction or a transaction relating to the transfer of Financial Assets or Cash
Flows;

= To review and approve arrangements and tie-ups with the banks for various banking facilities and/ or cash management services;

= To consider and approve availing of bank guarantees from various banks;

= To consider availing of corporate credit cards including credit card facility in the name of employees | officials of the company and the
terms of such facilities;

= To approve investment of surplus funds of the Company, within the limits approved by the Board, In Mutual Funds, Fixed Deposits,
Government Securities, securities of any Company/Body Corporate etc. and redemption, disinvestment thereof;

» To review and recommend the Investment Policy to the Board;

* To review and approve the Demand and Call Loan Policy and other related policies relating to Finance and Treasury (except the policies on
Asset Liability Management and Rate of Interest) of the Company;

= To decide on matters relating to the finalization of the terms and conditions of nonconvertible debentures (NCDs) to be issued on private
placement basis and allotted from time to time within the aggregate limit as approved by the Board of Directors, decide the opening and
closing Date for receiving application and date of allotment /deemed date of allotment, apply with stock exchanges for listing of the NCDs;
= To appoint the debenture trustee, legal advisors, depositories, custodians, registrar and transfer agent and other intermediaries, in
accordance with the provisions of the applicable Debt Regulations and the related formalities

= To approve, authorize officials to sign and execute Offer Document (s), Offer Letter (s,

-Information Memorandum(s) as per the prescribed format, if any, including any declaration, confirmation, affirmation, indemnity and
undertaking in respect of the NCDs to the potential investors, listing application(s), various agreements including but not limited to Deed of
Hypothecation, Debenture Trust Deed, Debenture Trustee Agreement, Listing Agreement, undertakings, deeds, dedarations, affidavits,
certificates, documents, etc and all other

documents and to do all such acts, deeds and things,and to comply with all formalities as may be required in connection with and incidental
to the offering of NCDs on private placement basis including the post issue formalities and with power to settle any question, difficulties or
doubts that may arise in regard to the Issue or allotment of such NCDs as may be deemed flIt.

= To delegate authorities from time to time to the executives/ authorized representatives to implement the decisions of the Committee
from time to time.

= Any such other roleffunctions as may be specifically referred to the Committee by the Board of Directors

1 General Body Meetings

Type of Meeting

d Pl Special luti
(Annual/ Extra-Ordinary) Date and Place pecial resolutions passed

SrNo

1.Appoint Mr. Sunil Harlalka as the Manager of the Company and
approve his remuneration,

2.Wppoint Mr. Karnam Sekar {DIN: 07400094) as an Independent
Director of the Company.

3.Bsuance of Non-Convertible Debentures / Bonds

September 20, 2023 at Registered

Annual | Meeti
1 nnual General Meeting office of the Canipany

2 Details of non-compliance with requirements of Companies Act, 2013 - Not applicable
3 Details of penalties and strictures - For year ended March 31, 2024 — NIL

B) Breach of Covenant
There are no breach of Covenants in the current year and previous year

C)  Divergence in Asset Classification and Provisioning ' =
Will update shortly : F S




39. Previous year figures are regrouped/reclassified, wherever necessary, to correspond with the current year's classification / disclosure.

40. There have been no significant events after the reporting date that require disclosure in these financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For Shinde Nayak and Associates
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 119906W

W -

L. V. Nayak
Partner
Membership No: 104221

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 11, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
InCred Prime Finance Limited
CIN: U74899MH1991PLC340312 ‘,)

fm!u;/f 4

Prithviraj Chandrasekhar

amlesh Dangi \

Director Director

DIN: 07869747 DIN: 05152439

Jay Lalwani Bhavyesh Jain
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No: A30093

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 11, 2024
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